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Corporate Information
NI

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Mr. Mumma, Adin David (resigned on 1 May 2019)
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares
(appointed as executive director on 1 May 2019)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian
(re-designated from an executive director to a
non-executive director on 1 September 2018)
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.P.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

17th Floor

Empress Plaza

17-19 Chatham Road South
Tsimshatsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

SOLICITORS

Guantao and Chow
Solicitors and Notaries

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
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BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Credit Agricole Corporate & Investment Bank
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

STOCK CODE
01170

WEBSITE

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/kingmaker

KEY DATES

Closure of Register of Members

Entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting

23 August 2019 to 28 August 2019

Entitlement to the proposed special dividend
4 September 2019 to 6 September 2019

Annual General Meeting

28 August 2019

Proposed Payment Date of Special Dividend

On or about 26 September 2019
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Financial Highlights
U TS

2019 2018 Change
“E-hE —E-N\F LX)
HK$WQ9 HK$OQQ
BTt FAT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEKEER
Revenue W= 1,100,649 1,164,873 -5.5%
Gross profit EF 116,255 182,621 -36.3%
-5.1 points
Gross profit margin ER=E 10.6% 15.7% (R
Profit for the year attributable to RATERBFEA
equity holders of the Company FEAL & R R
Recurring profit? LR ) 39,466 80,714 -51.1%
Non-recurring profit/(loss)" FEEERT (BE) " (3,873) 176,546
Total i 35,593 257,260 -86.2%
HK cents HK cents
AL il
Basic earnings per share BRELEF
— For profit for the year —EREF 5.14 36.82 -86.0%
— For profit for the year from continuing — & B 15 & & &
operations EB2FRRF 5.14 36.51 -85.9%
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
Proposed final and special dividends # )& & 2 2 45 B/ %
Interim dividend per share FRRHHR S 2.8 3.8
Special dividend per share FRlRERIRE 1.2 11.2
Final dividend per share FRABR S - 2.2
Special dividend per share FREFARE 2.0 12.8
Total dividends per share for the year 2 FEFRE B A5 6.0 30.0 -80.0%
. Cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$610 million R & kZERIHREIEE 4610,000,0007 T
& Balance included profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the — * BB GIERIFEAEEERNRETF TEEZKE

Company, excluding loss on disposal of investment properties, gain on
disposal of subsidiaries from continuing operations and profit for the year

from discontinued operation

Balance included loss on disposal of investment properties, profit for the
year from discontinued operation and gain on disposal of subsidiaries from

continuing operations

Turnover from
Continuing Operations

(HK$ Mil E& B T)
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Net Asset Value Per Share Attributable
to Equity Holders of the Company
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRS

-

“We have overcome many challenges over the past decades
and look forward to tapping into opportunities ahead. The trend
of footwear brand customers moving their sourcing locations
from China to other manufacturing hubs will likely continue.
Planning well in advance, we now command a strong platform
comprising two main and scalable production hubs in Vietnam
and Cambodia, with a supportive center in Mainland China. Our
strong manufacturing competence has placed us well to meet
future customer needs despite the current short-term business
volume decline.”

Chan Ho Man, Daniel
Chairman

\_
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MACROECONOMIC DISCUSSION

The financial year ended 31 March 2019 witnessed notably
slowed global economic activity. The trade frictions between the
United States (the “US”) and China impacted not only these two
economies but also increasingly on global business confidence
and consumer demand. At the same time, the global trade and
Brexit uncertainties had taken a toll on the euro area economy,
reflected in some lost momentum in the zone’s economic growth.
Ongoing volatility and trade tensions will likely continue to dim the
prospects of the advanced economies in 2019.

Southeast Asia’s growth rate dropped last year as the region
was hit by external and domestic headwinds. In line with global
trends, Asia’s economy will continue to be under pressure in the
current year, with China’s growth expected to slow further.
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The footwear industry reported generally weak retail sales in
major markets during the past year, with some brand owners
giving cautious revenue guidance for 2019. In the US, a number
of notable footwear businesses have filed for bankruptcy since
2018 citing competition, underperforming stores and supply-
chain interruptions among the factors in their decision. Retail
conditions have also been tough in the United Kingdom (the
“UK”), with further declines in clothing, footwear and outdoor
sales towards mid-2019 as the country met with higher political
and economic uncertainty. Industry data show that appetite for
this year is waning and retailers are sitting on piles of sale stock.

Chairman’s Statement
FRBHRE
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(G ROWTH STRATEGIES
Strategic goals:

1. Take a prudent and proactive approach to growth.

2. Invest in technology and innovation to provide effective
solutions to customers.

3. Explore opportunities for asset enhancement to increase
return for shareholders.

4.  Talent development — a continuous task for management.

Operational goals:

1. Seek an optimal scale to balance business volume and
profitability, by focusing on higher-value products and
brands with growth potential.

2.  Continue with the deployment of lean manufacturing and
semi-automation in the southern Vietnam and Cambodia
production bases.

3.  Enforce stringent cost control measures in the light of weak
market conditions.

4.  Attract, retain and engage talents from diverse backgrounds
to strengthen the Group’s professional management.

Financial goals:

Continue prudent financial management.
Maintain a healthy financial position.
Improve the Return on Investment (ROI) in the long term.

> @ N =

Maintain a broadly stable dividend policy while seeking to
deliver higher payouts if deemed appropriate.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRS

STRATEGIES AND OUTLOOK

Invest for the Future - Platform Readied for Long-term
Growth

We believe in every crisis lies an opportunity, but in order to be
well prepared we need to invest for the future.

The trend of footwear brand customers moving their sourcing
locations from China to other manufacturing hubs will likely
continue as the costs remain on the rise in the country.

Staying alert to the trend of rising costs and tightening operating
conditions in China, we have planned well in advance since the
turn of the century to diversify our manufacturing locations. After
years of capacity planning across a multi-country layout, the
Group now commands a strong platform comprising two main
and scalable production hubs in Vietnam and Cambodia, with a
supportive center in Mainland China.

The planning and investment in strengthening and rationalizing
our production competence is a continuous process for the
Group, and has helped us serve the evolving needs of our
customers. This multi-year program first involved the scaling
down of our capacities in Zhongshan (Guangdong Province) and
Jiangxi, and the eventual disposal of these two centers after a
careful evaluation of the clients’ manufacturing requirements and
the value of these assets. Currently we are retaining the Zhuhai
center as a research and development (‘“R&D”) and alternative
production location.

As an important part of our rationalization program, we have set
up a robust and scalable production base in southern Vietnam
and Cambodia. In order to prepare for further expansion, we
have already completed the construction of a new factory on a
site adjacent to our existing facilities in southern Vietnam. Our
short-to-medium-term plan ahead is to ramp up production in the
new factory premises when our existing plant reaches a higher
level of utilization. For medium-term development, a plot of land
has been reserved on a site within half-an-hour’s drive from the

existing plant.
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Our strong manufacturing competence has placed the Group well
to meet future customer needs despite the current short-term
business volume decline. We therefore view the costs spent on
readying our production platform as a necessary investment to
capture growth opportunities as the market rebounds.

With a core competence in the manufacturing of premium

casual, children’s and rugged athletic footwear, we have
sought to expand our capability in other types of footwear and
outsoles through an investment in an affiliated company, Alliance
Investment Development Limited. Based in central Vietnam, this
affiliate was established jointly with Evervan Group, which has a
strong background in the production of international top-of-the-
line sports shoes. We aim to achieve synergies with the affiliate

as it rolls out its business development initiatives.

The affiliate’s business plan has lagged behind its original
schedule owing to weak retail conditions. A loss was therefore
incurred in the financial year ended 31 March 2018. With
dedicated efforts to raise the efficiency of the plant and to
control costs, the loss was narrowed during the reporting year.
As the affiliate anticipates an increase in orders in the coming
year, investments are being made to build a new factory building
and ancillary facilities, and purchase machineries for additional
production lines and modify them to suit the requirements of
a new customer. The affiliate will also continue to enhance its
automation and lean manufacturing process in order to seek
further efficiency improvements. To facilitate this, as announced
on 25 April and 30 April 2019, the Group has advanced a
shareholder’s loan of approximately US$4,000,000 to the affiliate
on 30 April 2019 and will provide further financial assistance
of approximately US$4,000,000 to this affiliate by way of
shareholders’ loan or guarantees on a several basis in respect of
borrowings from banks by the end of this calendar year.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRS

Process Evolution and Technological Advancement

As discussed in the last annual report, we work together with our
clients to meet market trends and challenges. The uncertainty
in the global economy and soft retail environment have
driven footwear brand owners to turn to a more conservative
procurement strategy, while testing market acceptance with
the introduction of more product designs, resulting in generally
smaller order batch sizes.

We understand that smaller quantities and a wider array of
models have become a norm in the footwear industry. In order
to help our clients cope with the market challenges, we have
designed a concept-line system which is equipped with a
leaner workforce with the work process revamped to cater to
small orders, quick turnaround time and frequent assembly
line rearrangements. The design of this system also allows us
to improve our quality checks with immediate spotting and
correction of errors, and to have more transparent daily output
records.

Despite higher costs on material usage and staff adaptation at
the initial stage of transition to concept lines, we believe this
change is the right approach to tackle the market trend shift. The
unit material and staff costs can be brought down as efficiency
gradually increases and the production scale rebounds. The
transition from the traditional production line setup to concept
lines will continue in this coming year.

Higher levels of automation, innovation and digitalization are
also underway to drive efficiency and quality enhancements. We
foresee that labor shortage and cost inflation will increasingly
be a challenge for manufacturers, and in view of this we will
continue to explore and apply innovative technologies, including
the use of artificial intelligence and the continued advancement
of lean manufacturing and semi-automation processes. Digital
transformation of our facilities also enables real-time monitoring
and prompt reaction to various operational processes, from
production planning to products delivery.
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While we continue to invest in refining our manufacturing process
and technology, we will maintain strict cost control, such as
closely managing headcounts and working hours, in order to
deliver value to our customers.

Talent Development and Leadership Succession

We develop and retain a diverse and talented team of people
who are committed to making our customers successful and to
growing a world-class company that can share in that success.
And with the recruitment and nurturing of young talents, we
aim to build a robust second-generation management team to
continue the succession of managerial roles.

| would like to take the opportunity to welcome Mr. Chen Yi-
wu, Ares to the Board as an Executive Director and our Chief
Operating Officer. Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2016 and
has contributed to our marketing and business development
efforts. In his new capacity, Mr. Chen will work closely with our
production and marketing teams to drive business growth. On
behalf of the Board, | also express my gratitude to Mr. Mumma,
Adin David for his contribution during his service.

As our production centers in Vietham and Cambodia continue
to grow and mature, we are training local staff members to take
up management roles for these facilities. Localization will be an
important step to strengthen the long-term development of these
manufacturing locations.

| believe the Group is well on track to achieve its talent
development and succession goals.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRS

Asset Enhancement

In line with the Group’s business and capacity planning, some
self-owned factory and office properties may not be fully utilized
at times. The Board has initiated a long-term asset enhancement
program to consider the potential of sale or leasing in order to
create returns on these assets.

During the year, the Group continued to lease out its self-owned
property in Shanghai to independent third parties. In Hong Kong,
the Group has reorganized its office and warehouse properties,
after which a warehouse had been leased out. One floor of office
space in Hong Kong was also rented out recently.

As for the Zhuhai site, the Board will continue to evaluate its
potential and value. Due consideration will be given to the
potential of capital appreciation of this asset as the development
of the Greater Bay Area continues to roll out. Management will
carefully weigh the pros and cons, with a view to coming up with
a plan that is in the best interest of the shareholders.

Concluding Remarks

The subdued retail conditions in major footwear markets have
continued in 2019, reflected in the conservative procurement
patterns of our brand customers. While we have yet see major
breakthroughs in the order book during the new financial year
2019/20, we remain confident in a longer-term market revival for
the footwear industry.

Indeed, the Group has persevered through a series of economic
cycles and major macro challenges. We believe that our deep-
rooted culture to maintain steady business progress, financial
stability and strong governance has guided our path one step
after another in our decades-long history. And in future, the
Group will continue to adopt a prudent management approach to
achieve sustainable development.
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Our reliability and client-oriented solutions have earned us long-
term partnership relationships with many well established and up-
and-coming footwear brands. We value these partnerships, and
our customer-centric approach will continue to drive our progress
in constantly renewing our manufacturing competence.

We maintain a cautiously optimistic outlook for the current
financial year, while we will work hard to enhance the efficiency
and thus performance of our various facilities. Equipped with
a strong production platform, we are well positioned to remain
competitive in the evolving marketplace. Together with the
Kingmaker family, the Group will stay as the best run in the
industry.

APPRECIATION

| am grateful to all our business partners and clients who have
supported our tireless efforts to create long-term value for our
shareholders and society. | also take the opportunity to thank my
fellow directors, senior management and all staff members for
their dedicated service. The Group will continue to take prudent
yet steadfast steps forward towards our corporate and business
goals.

By order of the Board
Chan Ho Man, Daniel
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SIREBsIm &L DR

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Board is pleased to announce the annual results of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2019.

The year under review was a period of multiple and complex
challenges. On the sales front, slower growth in many
economies, a deepening Brexit crisis and its impact on the
European markets, as well as expectations of prolonged and
costlier Sino-US trade conflicts, have imposed a major hit on the
retail environment. Operationally, the increasing client requirement
for smaller order sizes and quick turnaround time has resulted in
frequent assembly line rearrangements, which have undermined
the economies of scale. The Group’s resilience was tested
against this background.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Turnover

During the year ended 31 March 2019, turnover decreased by
5.5% year on year to approximately HK$1,101 million (2018:
approximately HK$1,165 million) on a 10.9% drop in business
volume (pairs).

Despite a mild turnover growth in the first half of the financial
year 2018/19, footwear retail sales in major markets dropped
significantly during the second half amid a number of
uncertainties and challenges. This led brand customers to
become even more conservative in procurement. Reduced order
sizes, combined with the Group’s adoption of a more selective
sales strategy, resulted in a decline in full-year business volume.

The strategy to pitch for higher-value products and to enhance
the business portfolio drove a 4.6% improvement in the average
selling price (“ASP”) of the Group’s sales.

Gross Profit

As disclosed in the annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2018 and the interim report for the six
months ended 30 September 2018, continuous rising costs and
changes of safety standards remained a major pressure on the
gross margin. The gross profit decline also took into account
additional staff training and product development costs incurred
from the conversion of traditional production lines into concept
lines. Some efficiency loss was incurred due to the moving of
production lines between centers as some clients opted to shift
manufacturing locations to meet their business and operational

needs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SR 51 5m A i

The concept lines were designed to accommodate small batch
size production, as well as fast and frequent assembly line
changes. However, with the lack of repeat orders, re-adaptations
to new production processes were required and workers’ training
could not translate into efficiency. Material usage and labor input
both increased under this circumstance.

The gross profit margin was also adversely affected by increased
minimum wages in Vietnam and Cambodia, as well as salary
raises owing to inflation and competition for labor amid strong
foreign direct investments into these two manufacturing hubs. In
light of ongoing labor shortages, the Group opted to maintain a
relatively stable pool of skilled workers in spite of the short-term
order fluctuations. With the labor force already deployed, a scale
down of production volume has brought utilization lower and thus
higher unit labor costs.
Wages and salaries, including allowances and other benefits,
increased to approximately HK$355 million (2018: approximately
HK$315 million). This cost item’s proportion to turnover rose 5.2
percentage points to 32.2% (2018: 27.0%).

Costs associated with the furtherance of process automation,
as well as resources invested to cope with changes in employee
rights regulations, also had an effect on the gross profit.

The gross profit margin dropped to 10.6% (2018: 15.7%) as a
result of the above factors.

Net Profit

The Group recorded an approximately 86.2% year-on-year
decrease in profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
to approximately HK$36 million (2018: approximately HK$257
million). The decline in net profit was principally attributable to: (a)
the absence of the non-recurring profit of approximately HK$174
million from the net gain on disposal of Kingmaker Footwear
(Zhong Shan) Co.,
March 2018, the effect of which had already been shown in

Ltd. as recognized for the year ended 31
the interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30

September 2018; and (b) the approximately 51.1% year-on-year
decrease in recurring profit.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The decrease in recurring profit was in turn attributable to: (a) a
decrease in revenue attributable to the Group’s core business of
manufacturing and sale of footwear products, thereby reducing
the cost benefits from scale economies; (b) additional labour
costs incurred in association with the conversion of traditional
production lines into concept lines; and (c) additional costs
incurred and associated with re-evaluation of the Group’s
business model, client and product mix aimed at shifting its focus
onto products with higher profit margins in the long run. These
negative factors were nevertheless partially offset by the reversal
of a tax provision in the amount of approximately HK$35 million
due to an overprovision in prior years’ income taxes.

The net profit also took into account a share of losses of
associates amounting to approximately HK$7.4 million (2018:
approximately HK$11.6 million), as well as the impact of the
devaluation of the Renminbi (“RMB”) on the Group’s RMB-
denominated financial assets.

Earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year decreased by 86.0% year on year to approximately
HK5.14 cents (2018: approximately HK36.82 cents).

Key Financial Ratios

Healthy financial ratios were maintained during the year:

° Debtors’ turnover decreased to 34 days for the year ended
31 March 2019 (2018: 37 days);

° Stock turnover was 101 days (2018: 97 days) owing to a
temporary holding of stock on customers’ request;

° Strong liquidity with net cash in hand of approximately
HK$610 million as at 31 March 2019 (2018: approximately
HK$804 million);

° Current and quick ratios were 2.7 and 2.3 respectively
(2018: 2.4 and 2.1 respectively).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SR 51 5m A i

Final and Special Dividends

In anticipation of ongoing strong cash generated from the
manufacturing and investment properties segments and
considering the Group’s healthy financial position, the Group
pledges to continue its dividend policy of sharing results with
shareholders.

Accordingly, the Board recommended the payment of a final
dividend and special dividend of HK Nil cents (2018: HK2.2
cents) and HK2.0 cents (2018: HK12.8 cents), respectively, which
together with the interim dividend of HK2.8 cents and the special
dividend of HK1.2 cents (2018: interim and special dividends
of HK3.8 cents and HK11.2 cents, respectively), represents a
payout ratio of 116.7% (2018: 81.5%).

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Macro Environment

After a period of moderate economic growth, the retail
environment in the US and Europe had started to lose
momentum even before the imposition of tariffs on Chinese-made
goods. Brand customers have been highly conservative with new
product developments, resulting in a lack of ‘star products’ that
have strong and lasting customer appeal and that command
premium pricing in the market. A subsequent drop in footwear
retail prices was noted.

As the Sino-US trade conflicts escalate, major US footwear
companies have warned that the proposed additional tariff of
25% on footwear imported from China would be ‘catastrophic’
for American consumers and companies. The US shoe industry
is on high alert that the new tariffs would affect the coming back-
to-school inventory and holiday sales later this year. This would
drive footwear brands to further tighten their procurement plans.

Against this backdrop, the Group has taken a more conservative
approach in capacity planning. Although a majority portion of the
Group’s production is now based outside China, the Board is
alert to the broad-based impact of the trade conflicts on global
economic conditions. More stringent cost and risk management
was also adopted to guard against heightened uncertainty in the
operating landscape.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Manufacturing Business

The Group currently operates two core manufacturing bases in
southern Vietnam and Cambodia, with a small-scale production
center in Zhuhai, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Our
production platform also incorporates R&D centers in these three
locations, and two outsole factories in southern Vietnam and
Cambodia. In addition, the Group holds a 40% interest in a joint-
venture factory in central Vietnam.

With the Group’s multi-year effort to relocate its production lines
from the PRC to the lower-cost Southeast Asian sites, 89.5% of
the total production lines were based in Vietham and Cambodia
as at the year-end date, with 10.5% being retained in Mainland
China.

As at the year-end date, the Group had a combined production
scale of 39 concept and traditional processing lines, aggregating
to an annual capacity of around 11.1 million pairs, which were
68.9% utilized (2018: 70.0%). The drop in the utilization rate was
mainly a result of the decrease in business volume, the ongoing
transition from traditional to concept lines, and the relocation of
some production lines between different production centers to
meet clients’ production requirements.

In southern Vietnam, there were 22 concept lines and 4
traditional lines in operation, while in Cambodia the Group had 6
concept lines and 3 traditional lines. The conversion of traditional
lines to concept lines has been ongoing to cater to the trend of
small batch order sizes.

In terms of output, the Southeast Asian production base
contributed 85.2% of total production (2018: 82.2%) in pairs of
footwear, while Mainland China’s share was reduced to 14.8%
(2018: 17.8%) of total output.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SR 51 5m A i

The geographical distribution of markets shifted in accordance
with the change in product and clientele portfolios. European
markets’ contribution remained stable at 31.6% (2018: 33.7%)
whereas turnover from the US dropped to 11.8% (2018: 14.7%).
Shipments to other markets, including Asia and other areas,
accounted for 56.6% (2018: 51.6%).

Premium casual footwear remained the major product category,
accounting for 54.3% (2018: 55.5%) of turnover. The rugged
shoes category contributed 22.2% (2018: 15.5%) of Group
turnover during the year, and management noted that this
product line is regaining popularity in the market. Babies’ and
children’s footwear’s contribution remained stable at 18.8%
(2018: 18.2%), while the performance of the athleisure product
category was still lackluster with its share dropping to 4.7%
(2018: 10.8%).

Major customers for the year included Asics, Clarks, Quiksilver,
Skechers and Wolverine, with the top five customers’ aggregate
contribution remaining quite stable at 92.2% (2018: 93.7%) of
total turnover.

Key developments in the Group’s production centers include:

Southern Vietnam

Southern Vietnam remained the core manufacturing site for the
Group, contributing 68.8% (2018: 62.1%) of total volume output.
In the coming year, 3 production lines will be added to this
production center.

A new factory situated on a site adjacent to the existing facilities
is ready for future use. With confidence in a longer-term market
rebound, the new plant will well prepare the Group for ramping
up production capacity within a short lead time. In the meantime,
the plan is to fully utilize the capacity of the existing facilities
before making moves to install machinery and equipment for the
new premises.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group has also obtained the land use right of another plot of
land located about half-an-hour’s drive from the existing facilities.
This new site will be reserved for future expansion purposes in
the next three to five years.

With a production center in operation, new premises ready to
house additional manufacturing within a short lead time, and a
plot of land set aside for long-term expansion, the Group is well
covered in fulfilling existing demand, while positioned to capture
growth opportunities in future.

Cambodia

The number of production lines remained stable, but more
of them have been converted to the concept line setup. This
manufacturing site contributed 16.4% (2018: 20.1%) of output in
pairs during the year.

The Group will seek to further improve the operational efficiency
of the Cambodian factory, as this is a key to fulfilling future
orders. It is planned that this center will be expanded to 12
production lines in the coming year, with more concept lines to
be established.

Mainland China

Our manufacturing activity in Mainland China is based in Zhuhai
in southern China. In light of the rising costs in the country and
the ongoing Sino-US trade clashes, proportionate output (pairs)
from this center has been reduced to 14.8% (2018: 17.8%).

The Zhuhai facilities are currently retained as an alternative site
for clients who opted to keep a sourcing base in the country.
A lean labor force has therefore been maintained. The Group
will continue to review the value of the production site in Zhuhai
in terms of its strategic function as an alternative R&D and
manufacturing center, against its asset value or redevelopment
potential with the commissioning of the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-
Macao Bridge. For the coming year, the Board expects that this
center will be further scaled down.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Jiangxi factory has ceased production since 2016 and been
rented out for rental income since then. In June 2017, the Group
received from the Yifeng County Land and Resources Bureau a
notice of idle land investigation in respect of the land on which
the Group’s facilities in Jiangxi were located. After several rounds
of negotiations with the relevant land authority, on 31 October
2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
dispose of the land parcel, together with the properties thereon,
to the tenant. The Board believes that the disposal decision was
arrived at after much deliberation, and is in the best interest of
the shareholders.

Investments in associates

The Group holds a 40% interest in an affiliated company jointly
owned with Evervan Group (“Evervan”) in central Vietnam.
Evervan is a leading international footwear manufacturer. As at 31
March 2019, 3 production lines were in operation.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, turnover from the
associates increased by approximately 237% year on year to
approximately HK$192 million (2018: approximately HK$57
million). The performance of this affiliated company improved
with its loss narrowed. During the year, a share of losses from
associates amounting to approximately HK$7.4 million (2018:
approximately HK$11.6 million) was incurred mainly on increased
costs spent on staff training for new products.

Management noted an opportunity for this affiliated company to
capture orders from footwear brands which have taken steps to
move from China to Vietnam. Upon receipt of solid procurement
plans from a customer, the affiliate has proceeded to install
machinery and equipment. To fund the affiliate’s business plan,
the Group has advanced a shareholder’s loan of approximately
US$800,000 (equivalent to HK$6,240,000) in the second half of

the financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Considering the customers’ orders, the Board is confident of the
business growth of the affiliate in the coming year. With workers’
skills and efficiency further geared up, and economies of scales
to be achieved, the affiliate is looking forward to reducing the
operating loss in the year ahead.

As always, we will continue to be on the lookout for lucrative
opportunities to further expand our business, with the ultimate
aim of bringing greater value to our shareholders in the long run.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally finances its operation by internally and
generated cash flow and banking facilities provided by its
bankers.

Prudent financial management and selective investment criteria
have enabled the Group to maintain a strong financial position.
As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
were approximately HK$610 million (2018: approximately
HK$804 million).

The Group is substantially debt-free. As at 31 March 2019, the
Group had banking facilities amounted to an aggregate sum of
approximately HK$79 million (2018: approximately HK$99 million)
with various banks. Out of the trade and overdraft banking
facilities of approximately HK$79 million (2018: approximately
HK$99 million) in Hong Kong being granted to the Group, no
facilities had been utilized as at 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the current ratio was
approximately 2.7 (2018: approximately 2.4) based on current
assets of approximately HK$920 million and current liabilities
of approximately HK$339 million and the quick ratio was
approximately 2.3 (2018: approximately 2.1).
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As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any interest-
bearing bank borrowings (2018: Nil).

The Group will continue to maintain conservative cash flow
management to sustain a strong cash position. Having
considered the major expansion plans of the Group, including
Vietham and Cambodia in the next two to three years, the
Directors are of the opinion that the Group has adequate liquidity
to meet its current and future working capital requirements on its

operations and expansion.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and
expenditure are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the RMB,
the Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) and the US dollars (“‘US$”). It is
the Group’s policy to adopt a conservative approach on foreign

exchange exposure management.

However, the Group will continue to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure and market conditions to determine if any hedging is
required. The Group generally finances its operation with internal
resources and bank facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong.
Interest rates of borrowings are fixed by reference to the Hong
Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate or the London Inter-Bank Offered
Rate.

The Group’s treasury policies are designed to mitigate the impact
of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates arising from the
Group’s global operations and to minimise the Group’s financial
risks. As a measure of additional prudence, the Group cautiously
uses derivatives financial instruments, principally forward
currency contracts as appropriate for risk management purposes
only, for hedging transactions and for managing the Group’s
receivables and payables.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The exposure to foreign currency of the Group mainly arose
from the net cash flows and the net working capital translation
of its PRC and Vietnam subsidiaries. The management of the
Group will actively hedge the foreign currency exposures through
natural hedges, forward contracts and options, if consider
necessary. The management of currency risk is centralised in the
headquarter of the Group in Hong Kong.

Capital Structure

Shareholders’ equity decreased to approximately HK$1,118
million as at 31 March 2019 (2018: approximately HK$1,221
million). As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any
interest-bearing bank borrowings (2018: Nil), resulting Nil%
(2018: Nil%) of the shareholders equity.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities

During the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled
5,046,000 of its ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each on the Stock
Exchange at an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$8,414,000 excluding transaction cost. The repurchase of
the Company’s shares during the year was effected by the
Board, pursuant to the repurchase mandate granted by the
shareholders, with a view to benefit shareholders as a whole by
enhancing the net asset value per share and earnings per share
of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SR 51 5m A i

Details of the shares repurchase during the year under review are
as follows:

Number of

shares

Month/Year repurchased
- e d
&g 4=

£/R

January 2019 —Z— R F— A 996,000
February 2019 —Z— L& — A 3,450,000
March 2019 —E—hFE =4 600,000
Total 425t 5,046,000

The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of
approximately HK$7,909,000 has been debited to the share
premium account. An amount equivalent to the par value of the
shares cancelled has been transferred from the retained profits of
the Company to the capital redemption reserve.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.
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Aggregate

consideration
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Highest price Lowest price transaction
per share per share cost)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group, including its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Taiwan, the
PRC, Vietnam and Cambodia, employed approximately 9,100
employees as at 31 March 2019. The Group’s remuneration
policies are primarily based on prevailing market salary levels and
the performance of the respective companies and individuals
concerned. Share options and awarded shares may also be
granted in accordance to the terms of the Group’s approved
share option scheme and share award scheme, respectively.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIF - HEBKREIBHKRS

ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is delighted to present its
third Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “‘ESG
Report”). This ESG Report herein focuses on providing an
overview of the environmental and social aspects of the Group,
and outlines how we seek to continually improve our operational
strategy in regard to our environment and society in order to
cope with the global standards of sustainability.

During the process of the preparation of this ESG Report, the
Group has conducted thorough review and evaluation of the
existing Group’s policies and practices.

ESG Report Scope and Boundary

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”) (the “Listing Rules”).

In order to comply with the disclosure obligations of “comply
or explain” provisions, this ESG Report has outlined the overall
Group’s performance in environmental protection, human
resources, operating practice and community involvement for
the financial year from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 (the
“‘Reporting Period”).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIS HEBNREIBHS

The Group acknowledges the importance of proper disclosure of AEBRAZEREFIETHINEZY TRA
business activities, believing it as the key to building trust with EfEEEENBRRETETN@EE-Fl0- K
investors and shareholders. For instance, this ESG Report will ESGHRE#ZEHIA T HE :

highlight the following aspects:

. Emissions, Use of Resources and Generation of Waste; o BERCFIRERMRELEREEY:
e Employment and Labour Practices; e REBERSBIFEFR:

e Operating Practices; and o  EIEEM: R

e Community Investment. o HHEIEE-

OUR STAKEHOLDERS RAKNFDE

As stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success of HREFHEERMBEESEK T EADEESA
our business, we make use of various communication channels & KfERZEBBEBEBHIFMHEIRETHEN
to understand and engage our stakeholders. The probable K- ENAIEB T2 AR N BER LD
points of concern of the stakeholders and the way of our JEHRFIRLT

communication and responses are listed below.

HKEX Compliance with listing rules, and timely Meetings, training, workshops, programs,
and accurate announcements. website updates, and announcements.

Bt 32 P B ETARA R EREMFBEAE - g EA TED FHE WU E T R

YN

Government Compliance with laws and regulations, Interaction and visits, government
preventing tax evasion, and social inspections, tax returns and other
welfare. information.

B BFERERBRO By 1A R T ERFD BARE ABRHRK
T HitpEHt -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIF - HEBKREIBHKRS

Investors Corporate governance, business
strategies and performance, and
investment returns.

REE TEEL EBEBEKRE UKKREE
¥ o

Media & Public Corporate governance, environmental

protection, and human right.

HERAR TEED RREARE

Suppliers Payment schedule, and stable demand.

HrER MRERRRIBER K-

Customers Service quality, service delivery schedule,
reasonable prices, service value, and
personal data protection.

TR RSB X RISEMGE SBER R
BEREABBRRE-

Employees Rights and benefits of employees,
compensation, training and
development, work hours, and working
environment.

E& EEOERNREA - ME HIERERE-

THERERTERE-

Community environment, employment
opportunities, community development
and social welfare.

HERRE EREE HEEREME
Ao

Community

HE
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Briefing sessions and seminars,
interviews, shareholders’ meetings,
issue of financial reports or operation
reports for investors, media and
analysts.

AEERe g SR RERE-
MIREE KBRS MERHMBRE
HEBHE -

Newsletters on the Company’s website, if
appropriate.

EEERNARABUE MR -

Site visits.

B -

After-sales services.

ERIRTS -

Union activities, training, interviews
with employees, internal memos, and
employee suggestion boxes.

TEED B EBESHK FERBET
BRBRUEEERME

Community activities, employee voluntary
activities, community welfare subsidies
and donations.

MEED - BEE LTS L& EF/HAM &R
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Overview

With over three decades of operations, the Company has grown
into a reputable manufacturer of footwear for famous brands
including Asics, Clarks, Quiksilver, Skechers and Wolverine, and
has operating factories and offices located in China, Vietham,
Cambodia, Taiwan, Macau and Hong Kong. Being one of the
major footwear manufacturing groups in Asia, we recognize our
corporate duties and obligations to protect the environment. As
such, we have integrated the idea of sustainability into our day-
to-day operations by implementing various measures to reduce
carbon footprints and mitigate undesirable impacts on our
environment.

We strive to work towards a ‘green’ and sustainable working
environment by improving energy efficiency, addressing waste
management, supporting environmental education and promoting
the idea of recycling and reusing. The Group has established
a set of management policies, mechanisms and measures on
environmental protection and natural resources conservation to
help ensure the operations of the Group is in line with the world-
class environmental protection practices. Moreover, we have
recruited third party professionals to conduct energy audit test in
order to assess and evaluate our existing energy saving policies
and to determine whether the adopted measures are adequate in
terms of saving cost and energy as well as increasing productivity
while meeting stakeholders’ expectations.

IR HEKEIGHRS
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIF - HEBKREIBHKRS

Since our major operating factories are located in Vietnam
and Cambodia, this ESG Report will mainly focus on the
environmental issues and relevant measures that are applicable
to these two operating units. To achieve the environmental goals,
the Group has implemented the following measures:

° Comply with all applicable environmental laws and
regulations;

o |dentify, assess and mitigate all potential environmental
impacts associated with the Group’s activities;

° Commit leadership and develop a strong culture of
environmental stewardship within the entire workforce; and

° Make resources and systems available, with provision of
necessary training to empower our employees to fulfill our
environmental responsibilities.

PART A. SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Practices

As getting the right person for the right job by understanding
employees’ personality traits and unique talents is the
cornerstone to a company’s success, we regard employees as
one of the most valuable assets of the Group and aim at creating
a working environment that encourages diversity and respect,
enabling employees to exhibit individuality and creativity. As such,
we offer attractive remuneration and provide many internal and
external training opportunities to attract, motivate and retain the
right people.

Compliance and Grievance

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all laws and
regulations in relation to employment that have a significant
impact on us. No confirmed non-compliance incidents or
grievances were noted by the Group in relation to employment
aspects.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Employment

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of the
Employment Law in Vietham and Cambodia as well as other
relevant laws and regulations related to employment protection
and benefits. We have a set of personnel policies and procedures
that set out the Group’s standard internal procedures relating
to recruitment and promotion, working hours, holidays,
equal opportunities, compensation and dismissal, diversity
of the origins of our employees, anti-discrimination and other
human resources treatments and benefits, etc., to provide a
standardized and comprehensive guideline on work practice for
employees.

In Vietnam and Cambodia factories, approximately 7,500
employees (2018: approximately 8,000 employees) in the age
from 18 to 45 are employed. We welcome industrial experts to
join our team, add value to our pool of professional expertise of
the industry, and bring in innovative ideas.

Attract and retain talents

Our remuneration policies are in line with prevailing market
practices and are determined on the basis of competency,
qualifications and experience of the individual employees.
Management has been constantly reviewing the employees’
remuneration packages and promotion opportunities.
Adjustments are made, usually annually, to conform to the
market standard in order to retain talents and ensure the offer is
competitive as compared to the rivals in the industry. A standard
package includes basic salary and variable incentive-based
remunerations which are distributed in accordance with the
individual employee’s performance. Share options and awarded
shares may also be granted in accordance with the terms of
the Group’s approved share option scheme and share award
scheme.

Moreover, labor union is established as to protect interests
of our employees. The Company has entered a Collective
Bargaining Agreement with the Labor Union in which employees
have been able to negotiate for favourable rights and benefits.
Moreover, formal dialogue between the union and management is
scheduled on a quarterly basis to ensure regular and constructive
communication on employee welfare and employment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR HEKEIGHRS

Anti-discrimination and equal opportunities

The Group strives to create a fair and impartial working
environment where all employees are treated equally and
respectfully, and are entitled to equal opportunity in terms
of treatment and promotion. Any kind of discrimination or
harassment based on the employees’ gender, age, marital status,
race, sexual orientation and religion at our workplace is strictly
prohibited.

We always listen and respond to the requests from our
employees. It is the goal of the Group to create a friendly and
peaceful working environment. We encourage our employees to
provide feedback in relation to any employment-related matters,
especially when they encounter any unpleasant or undesired
treatments from colleagues or senior management. To maximize
access, suggestion boxes are made available throughout
the factory grounds. The Human Resources Department is
responsible for handling all cases and conducts investigations. If
any unfair treatment and harassment are found and confirmed,
the Group will issue a warning in writing form to the employee
who has done the wrongdoing and may dismiss him or her
depending on the seriousness of the incident.

Welfare and benefits

To increase the employees’ sense of belonging, we offer various
welfare and benefits to our employees. For instance, employees
are entitled to extra number of days of paid leave according to
their job level, in addition to all public holidays and minimum
number of days of paid leave in accordance with the Employment
Law. Moreover, we also conduct a series of activities every year
to promote our Group’s corporate culture to our employees.
During the Reporting Period, we organized an annual dinner and
several gatherings for employees to mingle and have fun.

As most of our employees are female, the Group does its best
to ensure its female staff are feeling comfortable and happy
while working with us. During the Reporting Period, the Group
organized a wide range of activities including training related
to reproductive health care, health care of women, health and
welfare of pregnant women and many more health related topics.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIS HEBKREBHKRS

Female employees at the Vietnam factory are given six months of
paid maternity leave and the guarantee of the same job position
upon their return. Pregnant employees are given a badge to
differentiate their company ID card and ensure both colleagues
and superiors can immediately identify them as a protected class.
During maternity, employees have access to special rights, such
as transfer to lighter work areas and a seven hour work day at full
pay. Maternity benefits continue even after maternity leave, in that
mothers are eligible for a monthly childcare allowance until her
child is aged six.

Health and Safety

We aim to provide a safe and healthy working environment to our
employees, and encourage them to achieve a balance between
work and a healthy lifestyle. The Group complies with the relevant
laws and regulations in relation to safety, as well as hygiene and
health.
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IRIF - HEBKREIBHKRS

As working in a manufacturing factory may expose our
employees to occupational hazards, we have established a
“Labour Safety Policy” which clearly details all the appropriate
practices and requirements in order to protect the safety of our
employees. Part of the labor safety policy addresses Personal
Protective Equipment (PPE) such that workers are required
to wear earplugs during trimming and wear gloves during the
process of gluing. While using dusting machines, workers are
required to wear masks. The Group has also established a “Work
Safety and Health Policy” to make sure that all staff are able to
receive proper care and medical treatments in the case of injury.

RRERETH T RANES T EERE
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BRTHREESZENERERERE

Moreover, we have an HSE team (Health, Safety, Environment)
to conduct random check throughout the production facilities
to monitor adherence to the labor safety policy, identify non-
compliance, and cooperate with the relevant teams to achieve
improvements.

To avoid safety hazards, employees are well-trained on the

standard operating procedures of machines. In addition, safety
warnings in both words and pictures are affixed to the machines.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

In order to maintain a good, comfortable, safe and healthy
working environment, the Group’s Labor Safety policy also
addresses areas including, but not limited to: chemical safety, fire
safety, electrical safety, machinery repair and operation, first aid
training, and emergency evacuation drills.

Development and Training

The Group believes that investing in employees through
training will help promote job satisfaction, work motivation and
staff loyalty; therefore we offer opportunities that foster our
employees’ leadership skills and professional development. An
annual training schedule is in place to ensure our employees
are offered with training during the year in order to get updated
with information, knowledge and skills required at work. All
new joiners would receive induction training on their first day of
employment. The total number of training hours for the Reporting
Period was approximately 146,000 hours (2018: approximately
182,000 hours). The average number of training hours completed
per each male and female employee were approximately 25 and
19 hours (2018: approximately 31 and 20 hours) respectively.

RIS HEBKREBHKRS
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IR HEKEIGHRS

The Group’s professional training programs cover a wide range
of specialties; some are on human rights, while some are on
safety and skills applicable to work. Moreover, employees
are also encouraged to attend external training courses and
seminars that help them gaining knowledge in the fast changing
business world. Any fees incurred for the courses or seminars are
sponsored by the Group.

Labour Standards

The Group is committed to complying with the laws and
regulations applicable to the various production bases, as well
as the relevant international human rights conventions relating
to employees’ protection and prevention of child and forced
labour. Every employment is subject to a stringent internal review
process that involves a well-established monitoring procedure
verifying a candidate’s personal information in order to avoid
misrepresentation and any form of child labour. For instance, the
staff member responsible for recruitment must review multiple
identification documents for each applicant to ensure that
identity, age and other purported data are authentic.

The employment of forced and child labour is strictly prohibited
by company policy and practice. In Vietnam, the law allows
younger generation aged 15 or above to work. Despite the
legality of employing young workers, the Group has established a
policy to set the minimum hiring age to 18. We strictly follows the
relevant laws and regulations, and provide adequate protection
for our employees. Employees’ rest time is well respected by the
Group, and any arrangement of overtime work must be agreed by
the employees voluntarily in advance in order to prevent forced

overtime work.

In the unexpected event that a young worker, age 15-18, is
discovered, the Group has a policy in place to ensure proper
welfare and work allocations for this protected class. During
the Reporting Period, all employees were legally and properly
employed in accordance with the requirements of all applicable
laws and regulations.
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OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

We believe that building a sustainable supply chain and
promoting interaction and communication with suppliers
can strengthen the confidence of our customers and other
stakeholders. Therefore, we only maintain a long-term
relationship with credible, reputable, and qualified suppliers of
high quality products and services.

Although most of the suppliers are designated by our customers,
in order to control the quality of the materials more effectively,
we have an internal mechanism to assess and evaluate our
suppliers. We evaluate their background, qualifications, expertise,
experience, financial status, and professionalism, etc. Moreover,
social and environmental aspects are also important criteria for
supplier selection. Approved suppliers are reviewed regularly to
ensure the quality of the services and products purchased is up
to standard.

Product Responsibility

We strictly comply with laws and regulations in regard to product
responsibility in the PRC, Vietnam, Cambodia, Taiwan, Macau
and Hong Kong that have a significant impact on us, including,
but not limited to, the Consumer Protection Law of China,
China’s Law of Tort, the Trade Descriptions Ordinance and the
Sale of Goods Ordinance in Hong Kong, and Law on Protection
of Consumer Rights in Vietnam. During the Reporting Period, no
confirmed non-compliance incidents or grievances were noted by
the Group in relation to copyright infringement.

Our primary focus is to provide high quality services and products
to our customers. In order to build customer trust and loyalty,
the Group has established relevant policies which cover service
quality, intellectual property and privacy protection. At our factory
in Vietham, we have a product quality inspection team that
monitors product quality and ensures the quality of products
is meeting our customers’ expectations. We also welcome our
customer’s quality control teams to come to our factories to
conduct quality inspections.
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IR HEKEIGHRS

During the Reporting Period, we did not make any
advertisements relating to products and services provided.
In case we do make any advertisements, we will adhere to
all relevant laws and regulations in relation to advertising and
labelling of products that have a significant impact on us to
ensure that we do not convey false or misleading message in
relation to our products.

If customers are not pleased with the products or service
quality, they may lodge a formal complaint and we would
respond promptly, conduct internal investigations and search for
solutions to settle the issue. Our management would contact the
customers (i.e. brand owners) regarding the issues directly.

In respect of privacy and confidentiality protection, the Group’s
employees are obligated to retain in confidence all information
obtained during the course of their employment, including, but
not limited to, trade secrets, know-how, customer’s information
and personal data, supplier information and other confidential
information. We also maintain information technology systems
with high level of security to prevent unauthorized access to
confidential information. Fingerprint identification facilities are
installed at the show room to allow only a small number of

authorized employees to enter into the show room.
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Anti-corruption

The Group strictly prohibits corruption and bribery committed
by its employees. In the case of conflict of interests, employees
must declare the concerns to management. In the case of
suspected corrupt practices, those should be reported to the
management. Employees are strictly prohibited to use business
opportunities, power and/or occupational position for obtaining
personal interests or benefits. During the Reporting Period, no
report of any corruption or bribery behavior was noted by within
the Group.

To prevent any corruption or bribery behaviour within the Group,
we brief newly joined employees on our anti-corruption practices
that we do not tolerate any form of corruption and will take the
most serious view of any attempt to commit corrupt practices.

Community Investment

We understand the importance of giving back to the society.
Therefore, we encourage our employees to take part in
community services so as to contribute to a more sustainable
and harmonious society. In particular, we are devoted to helping
the orphans through making donations to charitable bodies,
building primary schools and participating in school visits.
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IRIF - HEBKREIBHKRS

Our employees are committed to caring for the elderly, women,
children and other vulnerable groups by organizing different
voluntary activities, such as inviting children with special
education needs to visit the Company, organizing parties and
giving out presents to children.

Children are the pillars of society and education is one of the
most effective means to sustain community developments.
During the Reporting Period, the Group made donations of
approximately HK$277,000 (2018: approximately HK$592,000).
With help of the donation to Taiwan World Vision, library
rooms for two schools in Anping District, Vietnam were set up
in September 2018. The library rooms provide students with
opportunities to enhance language skills and expand knowledge
through reading. The Group has donated to World Vision for
Child Sponsor in helping the children enjoy good health, receive
education, care and protection, and participating in making their
community a better place to live.

PART B. ENVIRONMENTAL
Emissions

The Group’s greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions mainly resulted
from three types of activities, including but not limited to, direct
vehicle emissions, direct air-conditioning at offices and factories,
and the use of purchased electricity. Direct GHG emissions are
very subtle as the production process of footwear only includes,
abrasive, gluing and drying, universal pressing and pressed lining,
repairing, shading, labeling, inspection, and packaging; while
other indirect emissions mainly arise from the use of business
facilities. We have implemented various measures to ensure that
the emissions are kept at the minimum, and to reduce the impact
of our business activities caused to the environment.

Vehicles, forklifts and generators

8 motor vehicles are used to serve our management team
members, guests and clients, and 3 forklifts are used for lifting
and transporting heavy loads in Vietham and Cambodia factories.
In our business operations, employees are seldom required to
travel to different locations for work.
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All usage of fuel and mileage of the vehicles are recorded by
drivers on a daily basis in order to monitor the usage of vehicles.
Furthermore, all vehicles are under regular maintenance check to
facilitate fuel consumption efficiency, ensure road safety and keep
carbon dioxide emission at its minimum.

The total mileage travelled by the vehicles was approximately
391,000 kilometers (2018: approximately 470,000 kilometers).
The total consumption of fuel for both vehicles and forklifts
was approximately 73,000 litres (2018: approximately 87,000
litres); the total nitrogen oxides and sulphur oxides emissions
were approximately 29,000 grams (2018: approximately 35,000
grams) and approximately 1,000 grams (2018: approximately
1,000 grams) respectively; while the total particle emission
was approximately 2,000 grams (2018: approximately 3,000
grams); and the total carbon dioxide emission was approximately
195,000 kilograms (2018: approximately 231,000 kilograms).

Generators are used to support the operations in Cambodia. The
total fuel consumption was approximately 32,000 litres (2018:
approximately 14,000 litres), with a total carbon dioxide emission
was approximately 85,000 kilograms (2018: approximately
37,000 kilograms). Generator is used more frequently as a result
of the increase in the number of days with unstable electricity
supply in Manhattan Industrial Zone in Cambodia. Therefore, fuel
consumption of the generator has vastly increased as compared
to the previous year. In order to help reduce the use of fuel and
the emissions of greenhouse gases, all machines and equipment
would be turned off when they are not in use.

Based on our resource consumption, the total GHGs emissions
within our operations was approximately 10,657,000 kilograms
(2018: approximately 9,432,000 kilograms); and the intensity
was approximately 1.41 kilograms per pair of shoes (2018:
approximately 1.53 kilograms per pair of shoes).
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IR HEKEIGHRS

Air-conditioning

In Vietnam and Cambodia factories, indoor temperature
is maintained at 24 degrees Celsius or above to reduce
unnecessary energy wastage. Air-conditioners are switched off
when they are not in use. The Group has also put notices at
prominent locations to raise employees’ awareness of energy

conservation.

Use of Resources

The Group always endeavors to promote sustainability and aim to
cease resources wastage that provokes detrimental harm to the
environment. Various measures have been implemented to attain
the goal of using resources efficiently. These measures have
been effectively communicated to all levels of staff, ensuring that
all employees understand clearly the importance of conserving
energy and make full use of the available resources during work.

Use of Resources Policy has been issued, and certain goals and
plans have been made to save energy. We have also assigned a
department responsible for energy management, which includes
carrying out regular inspections and monitoring the usage of
energy. We are aware of the significance of energy saving for the
business and the society, and have made several investments on
saving the use of energy and resources. The measures taken are
as follows.

Water Usage

Water usage arises from the production process of footwear
and the daily use of water by employees at the offices during
working hours. Monthly water consumption depends highly on
the production volume of the month and has a slight fluctuation
throughout the year.

At the factory in Vietnam, meters are installed to monitor the
water consumption which makes analyzing the consumption
index of each production stage easier. As for the Cambodia
factory, it is convenient for the site to source natural water from
wells in the nearby area.
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In order to use water efficiently, the Group has installed automatic
water saving taps in toilets and has placed written notices in
conspicuous areas to remind staff to save resources. Moreover,
we have also consulted third party professionals to evaluate the
existing energy saving policies and suggest ways to improve our
measures.

We would continue to put more efforts to reduce unnecessary
water consumption. During the Reporting Period, the total
consumption of water in Vietnam site was approximately 347,000
cubic meters (2018: approximately 333,000 cubic meters),
with a total of approximately 278,000 cubic meters (2018:
approximately 266,000 cubic meters) of sewage discharged into
pipes. The total water consumption and water sewage generated
during the Reporting Period per one pair of shoes sold were
0.0531 cubic meters and 0.0426 cubic meters respectively
(2018: 0.0472 cubic meters and 0.0377 cubic meters). The
increase in water consumption mainly due to increase in the
number of new concept production lines adopted. There
meters have not been installed in the Cambodia factory. During
the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations in relation to the discharge of sewage in Vietham
and Cambodia, and paid Vietnam Singapore Industrial Park in
Vietham and Manhattan Industrial Zone in Cambodia sewage
fee to handle the waste water on our behalf. No confirmed non-
compliance incidents or grievances were noted by the Group.
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IR HEKEIGHRS

Electricity and Energy Usage

In consideration of the potential environmental threats to the
communities, the Group has made steady progress in reducing
its carbon footprints across the business. The Group’s electricity
consumption for the Reporting Period was approximately
15,468,000 kWh (2018: approximately 14,640,000 kWh), with
a total carbon dioxide emission was approximately 10,276,000
kilograms (2018: approximately 9,143,000 kilograms).The total
electricity consumption and carbon dioxide emission generated
during the Reporting Period per one pair of shoes sold were
2.3688 kWh and 1.5737 kg respectively (2018: 2.0737 kWh and
1.2950 kg). It is mainly arising from daily consumption by the
offices and factories in Vietham and Cambodia. Moreover, the
Group has recruited third party consulting company to perform
energy audit tests at the Vietnam factory and provide suggestions
and comments on the existing policies for room of improvements
in electricity and energy usage.

The following are the measures that the Group has implemented
to preserve energy and electricity:

o Lighting, appliances, machines and equipment are turned
off when they are not in use to reduce energy consumption;

° Air conditioners and lights are turned off during non-office
hours, including lunch hours, and in idle rooms;

° Employees are required to put computers and other devices
into sleep mode or turn them off when they are not in
use (such as during customer visit and lunch time) during
business hours;

° Regular maintenance of office equipment such as air
conditioners, computers, lights, refrigerators, etc. to ensure
they are operating efficiently;

o Printing machine in the office is set at energy-saving mode
by default, and the sleep mode is automatically turned on,
if not in use for a certain interval in time so as to reduce
unnecessary energy consumption;

° Used printer cartridges are sent to the printing company for
recycling; and

° Investment in technology is made to improve the efficient
use of energy.
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Packaging

In response to environmental protection, we have tried to
minimize wastage of packaging materials to the greatest extent
by reducing the use of new cartons through reusing and recycling
old card boxes.

The shoe boxes and carton boxes consumed were approximately
1,200 tonnes and 850 tonnes respectively (2018: approximately
950 tonnes and 650 tonnes).

Generation of Waste

The solid waste generated by the Group mainly arises from
day-to-day operations, including, but not limited to, office-use
paper, office waste and excessive materials generated during
the production process. Total paper waste disposed at landfills
has leading to carbon dioxide emission of approximately 22,000
kilograms (2018: approximately 21,000 kilograms). In order to
alleviate the pressure on landfills and promote environmental
friendliness, we have implemented various measures to
encourage recycling of office supplies and other materials, and
eliminating the over-consumption of unnecessary products;
prioritizing reuse and recycling over disposal.

Both hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are generated during
the manufacturing processes. In order to reduce the production
of solid waste, statistics of waste is recorded monthly in order
to keep track of the volume of disposal of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes. Employees are always reminded to use
resources carefully and avoid using excessive materials during
the process of shoe-making.
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IRIF - HEBKREIBHKRS

The total hazardous and non-hazardous wastes generated during
the Reporting Period were approximately 13,000 kg and 897,000
kg respectively (2018: approximately 11,000 kg and 970,000 kg).
The total hazardous and non-hazardous wastes generated during
the Reporting Period per one pair of shoes sold were 0.0020 kg
and 0.1374 kg respectively (2018: 0.0016 kg and 0.1374 kg).

The Group is highly concerned with the disposals of hazardous
waste and full compliance with Part D of Article 36 Chapter V
of the Vietnam Law on Environmental Protection and Law on
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources Management
of Cambodia. We have recruited licensed parties to handle all
wastes generated during the manufacturing process. During the
Reporting Period, no confirmed non-compliance incidents or
grievances were noted by the Group in relation to waste disposal.

Compliance and Grievance

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with all relevant
environmental laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on us, including but not limited to, “Law on Environmental
Protection and Natural Resources Management” in Cambodia
and “Law on Environmental Protection” in Vietnam. No confirmed
non-compliance incidents or grievances were noted by the Group
in relation to environmental issues.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. The Board is committed to ensuring the self-regulatory
practices exist to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. These include a Board with high caliber members,
Board Committees and effective internal audit and good systems
of internal controls. The Board and the management of the
Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company believes
that good corporate governance provides a framework that is
essential for effective management, a healthy corporate culture,
sustainable business growth and enhancing shareholders’
value. The Company regularly reviews the corporate governance
procedures and developments of the Company. The corporate
governance duties have been delegated by the Board to the
audit committee of the Company. The primary duties of the audit
committee in relation to corporate governance include developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and making recommendations to the Board, so as
to enhance and to ensure the corporate governance practices
of the Company are in line with the relevant requirements. The
Company applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms without deviation from
the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Directors
have complied with such code of conduct and the required
standard of dealings in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors throughout the
year ended 31 March 2019.
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The duty of the Board is to manage the Group in a responsible
and effective manner and every Director has to carry out his/
her duty in good faith and achieve the standard of any prevailing
applicable laws and regulations and act in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders. During the year under review
and up to the date of this report, the members of the Board
included:

Executive Directors:

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Mumma, Adin David (resigned on 1 May 2019)

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu

Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares (appointed on 1 May 2019)
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Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel (Chairman)
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian
(re-designated from an executive director to a
non-executive director on 1 September 2018)
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sSBs, J.P.

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Directors’ biographies and the relationship among the
Board members, if any, are set out in “Directors and Senior
Management Profiles” of this annual report. Save as disclosed
in the “Directors and Senior Management Profiles”, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)
among the Directors. Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are currently two
separate positions held by Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel and Mdm.
Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen respectively with clear distinction in
responsibilities.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The records of attendance of individual Directors at the Board
meetings and annual general meeting, and relevant committee
members at Board committee meetings held during the year
under review are set out in the following table:
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Executive Directors #{TEE
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen & %% % £ 4/4 N/ATE A N/AT 8 A 1/1 1/1
Mr. Mumma, Adin David 5 A% 5t £ 4/4 N/AT i F N/ATR i N/AZNiE 0/1
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu /& % 4 4/4 N/ATE A N/AT 8 A N/AT 8 A 1/1
Non-executive Directors F#{TES
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel B 0L £ 4/4 N/ATiE A 11 N/ATE A 11
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 1 & 4 %t £ 4/4 N/ATE A N/AZiE B N/AT i 11
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P.

FKEEL REFEE AFHL 4/4 2/2 11 N/ATN 8 A il
Independent non-executive Directors B FHITEE
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny % IF %t £ 4/4 2/2 1 11 11
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 7 /L 7t £ 4/4 2/2 11 1/1 1/1
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel REZ 7+ 4/4 2/2 11 11 1/1
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Apart from the above regular Board meetings of the year, the
Board will meet on other occasions when a Board level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors receive details of
agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each Board meeting. The Board has reserved for its
decision or consideration matters covering corporate strategy,
annual and interim results, Directors’ appointment, succession
planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and
capital transactions, and other significant operational and
financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of annual and interim financial statements for Board
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements, rules and
regulations.

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate strategic
development and ensuring the business operations are properly
monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all policy
matters and material transactions of the Group.

The Board delegates the day-to-day operations to general
managers and department heads who are responsible for
different business functional units of the operations of the Group.

Besides, to assist the Board in discharge of its duty, the Board
established the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee and their scope of duties and terms of
reference were discussed and approved in the Board meetings.

Non-executive Directors

All the non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
term of three years that are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Board has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of their
independence and satisfied that their independence up to the
date of this report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors
should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. During the year under review, relevant materials on
legislative and regulatory updates were circulated to all Directors,
namely Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen, Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian,
Mr. Mumma, Adin David, Mr. Wong Hei-chiu, Dr. Chow Wing-
kin, Anthony, Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel, Mr. Tam King-ching,
Kenny, Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven and Ms. Chan Mei-bo,
Mabel, as to keep them abreast of any changes to the regulations
and disclosure obligations. Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen,
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian, Mr. Mumma, Adin David, Mr. Wong
Hei-chiu and Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel also attended relevant
training courses on management, duties and responsibilities of
a director and/or other topics organized by external professional
bodies during the year under review to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy since 2000
with an aim to indemnify its Directors and senior executives from
any losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses arising
from, including but not limited to, any proceedings brought
against them during the performance of their duties pursuant
to their respective service agreements entered into with the
Company.
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PROCEEDINGS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Board considers that all meetings should be properly
convened. With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the
Chairman of the Board takes the lead to ensure that Board
meetings and Board committee meetings are convened in
accordance with the requirements set out in the bye-laws of
the Company, the terms of reference of the respective Board
committees and the Listing Rules.

In convening Board meetings, the Chairman is responsible for
drawing up and approving the agenda for each meeting after
consultation with all the Directors and the Company Secretary.
Prior notice of each regular Board meeting is given to all the
Directors at least 14 days in advance.

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition,
special Board meetings are held when necessary. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication, of all the
Directors.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to
provide sufficient notice to give all the Directors an opportunity to
attend. For special Board meetings, reasonable notice is given.

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The minutes of Board meetings record in sufficient detail the
matters considered by the Board, including all concerns raised
by the Directors and dissenting views expressed. The minutes of
all Board meetings and Board committee meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary and are available for inspection by any
Director, auditors or any relevant eligible parties who can have
access to such minutes.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules, the
Company should establish a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and duties.

The principal role and function of the Remuneration Committee
include the determination of the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management
of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, such as any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration
of non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee consisted of an
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors
as set out below:

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven (Chairman)
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the
remuneration packages of the Directors with reference to the
factors including salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted the operation model where it performs an advisory
role to the Board, with the Board retaining the final authority
to approve the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
considers that the remuneration packages of the Directors are fair
and reasonable and has recommended the same for approval by
the Board. Details of the emolument policy of the Directors are
set out on page 89 of this report.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management
(excluding Directors) by band for the year ended 31 March 2019
is set out below:

Remuneration band Number of individuals
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 3|

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
include to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board on a regular basis and to make recommendations to the
Board regarding any proposed changes. The Board considers
the past performance and qualification of the candidates
for Directors, general market conditions and the Company’s
bye-laws in selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy with effect
from 1 September 2013. The policy sets out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognizes and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance. In determining the Board’s
composition, the Nomination Committee will consider board
diversity in terms of, among other things, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on merit, and candidates will be considered against
appropriate objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee will monitor
the implementation of the diversity policy and review the same as
appropriate.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy, which sets out
the criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of
Directors, with the objective to ensure the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.

1. Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate:—

o Reputation for integrity

o Accomplishment and experience

° Qualifications

o Compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest

° Independence — in case of nomination or re-
appointment of independent non-executive Directors,
the requirements and guidelines on independence of a
candidate in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules;

o Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has
the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.
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Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call
a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if any, for
consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to its
meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

The Nomination Committee should evaluate such
candidate based on the selection criteria mentioned
above to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. If he or she is considered appropriate, the
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for
the Board’s consideration and approval for filling a casual
vacancy. For proposing candidates to stand for election
at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall
make nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation. A candidate is allowed to withdraw his/
her candidature at any time before the general meeting by
serving a notice in writing to the company secretary of the
Company. The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to the recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at any general meeting.

Retiring Directors are eligible for nomination by the Board to
stand for re-election at a general meeting. The Nomination
Committee and/or the Board should review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Director and his/her level of participation and performance
on the Board.

If an independent non-executive Director is subject to
re-election, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
will also assess and consider whether the independent non-
executive Director will continue to satisfy the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee consisted of two
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors as set out below:

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel (Chairman)
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.P.
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Nomination Committee considered and resolved that all the
existing Directors shall be recommended to be retained by the
Company. Further, in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws
and as resolved by the Nomination Committee, Mr. Chan Ho
Man, Daniel, Dr. Chow Wing Kin, Anthony and Ms. Chan Mei Bo,
Mabel will retire from office by rotation and Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares
will retire from office pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the bye-laws
of the Company, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As required by Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference, which deals clearly with its authority
and duties. Its principal duties are to review and supervise the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal control systems.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit
Committee consisted of a non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors as set out below:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny (Chairman)
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.P.
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, interim and annual
reports, the accounting principles and practices adopted and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee also reviewed
and approved the external auditor’s remuneration and terms of
engagement and recommended the Board for re-appointment of
the external auditor.
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The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties, including:

° To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

° To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

° To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

° To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2019 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements,
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

The Audit Committee considered that the existing proposed
terms in relation to the appointment of the Group’s external
auditor are fair and reasonable.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor, including whether
such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material
adverse effect on the Group. During the year under review, the
fees payable to the Company’s external auditor for audit services
and non-audit services were HK$2,247,000 and HK$1,459,000,
respectively. The non-audit services relate primarily to tax
compliance and consultancy services.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial year,
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting
period and of their financial performance and cash flows for
that year in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and in compliance with relevant law and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the Listing Rules. The Directors have prepared the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 on a going
concern basis. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which reflect the financial position of the
Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

The Directors’ responsibilities and the responsibilities of the
independent auditor with respect to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2019 are set out on pages 97 to 105 of this
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognizes its responsibility for maintaining an
adequate and sound enterprise risk management and internal
control system and through the Audit Committee and, if
necessary, an external independent professionals to provide
internal control services, conducts reviews on the effectiveness
of these systems at least annually, covering material controls,
including financial, operational, compliance and strategic risk
control functions. The Board understands that such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.
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During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted an annual review of both design and
implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates
any material issues identified to the Board.

During the year under review, the Company appointed Corporate
Governance Professionals Limited (an operating entity of Baker
Tilly Hong Kong) (“CGPL”), an external independent professionals
to:

° assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

° independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by CGPL to enhance the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of the
Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings and
recommendations of CGPL as well as the comments of the Audit
Committee, the Board considered the internal control and risk
management systems effective and adequate.
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Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group established its enterprise risk management framework
during the year. While the Board has the overall responsibility to
ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an
internal control system to manage all kinds of risks faced by the
Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board
and management to manage the risks of the Group effectively.
The Board receives regular reports through the Audit Committee
that oversight risk management and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the following principal
risks of the Group were identified and classified into strategic
risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks.

Risk Areas Principal Risks
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Operational Risks No significant risks identified

Financial Risks Risk of inflation/deflation

Compliance Risks No significant risks identified
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Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance and
compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced
to and conducted by Baker Tilly. The Group adopts risk
management policy and procedure (the “Risk Management
Policy”) and maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified
major risks of the Group. The risk register provides the Board,
the Audit Committee, and management with a profile of its major
risks and records management’s action taken to mitigate the
relevant risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on
its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group.
The risk register is updated by management as the risk owners
with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has
been performed. This review process can ensure that the Group
proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk
owners have access to the risk register and are aware of and
alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so that they can
take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

Our risk management activities are performed by management on
an ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic
management meeting is held to update the progress of risk
monitoring efforts. Management is committed to ensuring that
risk management forms part of the daily business operation
processes in order to align risk management with corporate goals
in an effective manner.
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The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to
perform internal audit function for the Group in order to meet its
needs. Nevertheless, the directors will continue to review at least
annually the need for an internal audit function.

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”). The internal
control mechanism includes information flow and reporting
processes, confidentiality arrangements, disclosure procedures,
and staff training arrangements, etc.

DIVIDEND POLICY

It is the policy of the Board, in recommending dividends, to
allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits
and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth. The Company expects to maintain a general dividend
policy of declaring and paying approximately 30% to 60%
of the Company’s consolidated net profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company in each financial year subject to
the financial performance, business development, working capital
requirements and capital expenditure plan of the Group. The
Company may in addition from time to time consider to declare
special dividends subject to the macroeconomic environment,
funding needs on business development, overall cash position
and any future capital commitments of the Group.
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Declaration and payment of dividends shall remain to be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board, taking into
consideration of, among others, the following factors:

(i) operations and earnings;

(i) business development;

(i) liquidity position;

(iv) capital requirements and surplus;

(v)  general financial conditions;

(vi)  contractual restrictions (if any); and

(vi) any other factors that the Board considers appropriate.

Subject to the Companies Act of Bermuda and the bye-laws of
the Company (the “Bye-laws”), the Company may from time to
time declare dividends in any currency to be paid to the members
of the Company but no dividend shall be declared in excess of
the amount recommended by the Board.

The Board may also from time to time pay to the members of
the Company such interim dividends as appear to the Board to
be justified by the profits of the Company. Any declaration and
payment as well as the amount of the dividend will be subject to
the Bye-laws and the Companies Act of Bermuda.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor
relations and communications with its investors. An intensive
communications channel has been maintained with the media,
analysts and fund managers through one-on-one meeting,
road shows and conferences. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s development.

66 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019

EREEMNBEEREZTSRF L TIEE (K
TEE)RERRBEE:

() HEREF:

(i) EBERER:

(i) MEESMMR:

vy B2FBREEE:

V)  EBBFBKR:

V) AHRHE (WmE) Rk

(vi) EFERA/BEENEMEMEER-

REBAREQRERARFAA (TARI) - Ao
AR AR EMAEREERARAKBIRMRE
HEBREE T ERAEEERZT RMNERE-

HEFERARDADEHR LSRR
T RIS A RIBK BRI 8 (1]
BIERIEN A RR S 2B AR T AR RERE
A%

REEBE

ARBEEREIENATREEHELERERES
2B ARFBBEER NTERESKER
TERIE %  BREELNNE  EMEREZZ
BARE YR RSAEEEERBREERD
ERSTEHEE KMRARSFREEELALT
BRZBHHEE -



Corporate Governance Report

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sets high priority in communicating with
shareholders and investors. Regular meetings with institutional
shareholders and general presentation of financial results are
made when financial results are announced. The Company also
provides extensive information in its annual report, interim report
and announcements.

The Board endeavours to maintain an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders. All directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders.
In annual general meeting, the chairman of the Board and the
chairman of each committee are required to attend and answer
questions from shareholders in respect of the matters that they
are responsible and accountable for. In addition, a representative
of the Company’s external auditors is requested to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report,
accounting policies and auditor independence.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and special
general meeting (“SGM”) provide good opportunities for
shareholders to express their views and ask Directors and
management questions regarding the Company. All shareholders
of the Company receive the annual report, circulars and notices
of AGM and SGM and other corporate communications.
Separate resolutions are required at general meetings on each
distinct issue. Each shareholder is permitted to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote in his stead.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
NOMINATE A DIRECTOR, MAKE PROPOSALS
AND CONVENE GENERAL MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, if a shareholder,
who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
convened to deal with appointment/election of director(s), wishes
to propose a person (other than the shareholder himself/herself)
for election as a director of the Company, the shareholder must
deposit a written notice to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company. Details for nominating candidates
to stand for election as a director are set out in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company website.

(i) Any one or more shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100
shareholders may submit a written request to make proposals
or move a resolution at a general meeting; or a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at a
particular general meeting. Such request must be deposited at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong,
for the attention of the company secretary of the Company, not
less than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Details of the
requirements and procedures for making proposals or moving
a resolution at a general meeting are set out in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company website.

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company’s registered office and at its
principal place of business in Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Details
of the requirements and procedures for convening general
meetings are set out in the Corporate Governance section of the
Company website.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board of the Company by addressing them to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
at 17th Floor, Empress Plaza, 17-19 Chatham Road South,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong by post or by email to
kingmkra@netvigator.com for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the company secretary will
forward:

1. communications relating to matters within the Board’s
purview to the executive Directors of the Company;

2. communications relating to matters within a Board
committee’s area of responsibility to the chairman of the
appropriate committee; and

3. communications relating to ordinary business matters, such
as suggestions, inquiries and complaints, to the appropriate
management of the Company.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all voting at the Company’s general
meetings shall be conducted by poll. The Company’s bye-laws
have set out the procedures and requirements of voting by poll.
Such voting procedure would be explained by the Chairman at
the commencement of the general meeting of shareholders.

CODE OF CONDUCT

To enhance the standards of employees, the Company has
set out standards of professional and ethical conduct for
all employees of the Group. The employees at all levels are
expected to conduct themselves in an honest, diligent and
responsible manner.

CONCLUSION

The Company will continue its enduring effort in reviewing the
corporate governance practices from time to time and will try its
best in maintaining, strengthening and improving the standard
and quality of the Company’s corporate governance to meet with
the continuous changing environment and for the benefit of the
shareholders.
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EENRCSEERASRME

Position held

B

Name Age
p#E i

Number of
years of
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ERFH

Business experience

BRER

Huang Hsiu-duan, 62 Executive director and

Helen Chief Executive Officer

AW WITESRITHAR

Chen Yi-wu, 27 Executive director

Ares (with effect from 1 May 2019)

o HITES
(AZZ-NFRaA-HEE
)
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38

Madam Huang is a co-founder of the Group. She is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company and
serves as a director for the subsidiaries of the Company. She
is responsible for formulating the overall business strategies
and future development plans for the Group, the purchasing
function and human resources management of the Group.
Madam Huang has more than 42 years’ experience in the
footwear industry. Madam Huang is the mother of Ms. Chen
Zi-yun, Fiona Apple and Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares. Madam Huang
is one of the directors of King Strike Limited, which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Mr. Ares Chen joined the Group in 2016 and is also the vice
president of the Group. Mr. Chen was also appointed as
the Chief Operating Officer of the Group with effect from 1
May 2019. Mr. Chen assists the Chief Executive Officer for
the Group’s production and customer relations. He holds
a bachelor's degree of Arts in Economics from Tamkang
University in 2014. After graduation, he continued to further
his studies in Business Psychology at University of Leeds, the
United Kingdom. Mr. Chen is the son of Madam Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen and a brother of Ms. Chen Zi-yun, Fiona Apple.
Mr. Ares Chen is one of the directors of King Strike Limited,
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
®E R B4 TREY BHELH
Wong Hei-chiu 52 Executive director 11 Mr. Wong is also the chief financial officer of the Group and
HETR HIESE company secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong is responsible

for the supervision and management of the Group’s overall
financial matters and investor relations. Mr. Wong obtained
an Executive Diploma in Corporate Governance and
Sustainability Directorship from The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors and completed the Prince of Wales’ Business
Sustainability Programme from the University of Cambridge
Institute for Sustainability Leadership in 2019. Mr. Wong holds
an Executive Master's degree in business administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor’s
degree in business administration from Lingnan University,
Hong Kong. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising),
a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, a fellow member of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Wong is also a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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77 B A B 3UR (Executive Diploma in Corporate Governance
and Sustainability Directorship) * If R K L] £ B EE
HEBR (University of Cambridge Institute for Sustainability
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Mr. Wong has over 28 years of corporate finance and financial
management experience in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr.
Wong is an independent non-executive director of Prosperous
Printing Company Limited, whose shares are listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-
executive director of Vico International Holdings Limited,
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from January 2018 to March 2019 and Hong Wei
(Asia) Holdings Company Limited, whose shares are listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, from December 2013
to June 2016. Prior to joining the Group in 2008, Mr. Wong
has worked as the group financial controller and company
secretary in a Hong Kong listed electronics manufacturing
company for over 8 years; and as the finance director and
company secretary in another Hong Kong listed wholesale and
distribution company for over 4 years.
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B

Number of
years of
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ERFH

EENRCSEERASREE

Business experience

BHER

Chan Ho-man, 64

Daniel
B

Kimmel, Phillip Brian 67
RRG

Non-executive director and
Chairman

FRTESRIR

Non-executive director

FRTES

(re-designated from an
executive director to a non-
executive director on

1 September 2018)
(RZE-NFNA—RH#H
TESRATAFNITES)

23

25

Mr. Chan has been with the Group since 1996. He is
responsible for formulate, advising the management on the
corporate strategy and policy development. Mr. Chan also
serves as the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan is
also the company secretary of Kin Yat Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan has more than 40 years’ accounting and corporate
finance experience in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Kimmel has been with the Group since 1994. He is
responsible for the Group’s investors and customer relations.
Mr. Kimmel has more than 43 years’ extensive experience in
the footwear industry. He holds a Bachelor's degree from the
University of Southern California and a Master’s degree from
the University of Washington in China Regional Studies.
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®E R B4 TREFH BELR
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, 69 Non-executive director 25  Dr. Chow serves as a member of the Nomination Committee

Anthony, SBS, J.P.
BxiEt
REAEE AT#HT
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FHITES

and the Audit Committee of the Company.

Dr. Chow is a solicitor admitted to practise in Hong Kong
and England and Wales. He has been a practising solicitor
in Hong Kong for over 39 years and is currently a senior
consultant of the law firm Messrs. Guantao & Chow Solicitors
and Notaries. His principal areas of practice include corporate
and commercial, property law, probate and civil litigation. Dr.
Chow is a China-Appointed Attesting Officer and member
of South China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission/Shenzhen Court of International Arbitration. He is
currently the chairman of the board of stewards of The Hong
Kong Jockey Club. Dr. Chow was conferred Doctor of Social
Sciences, honoris causa, by The Open University of Hong
Kong in 2018. He was appointed a Justice of the Peace in
1998 and awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star medal in 2003.

He is also an independent non-executive director of MTR
Corporation Limited and Ping An Healthcare and Technology
Company Limited, both of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He is also an independent
director of S.F. Holdings Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
Maanshan Dingtai Rare Earth & New Materials Co., Ltd), a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Dr. Chow is the chairman of the Process Review Panel of
Financial Reporting Council and a member of The Exchange
Fund Advisory Committee and The EFAC Governance Sub-
committee of Hong Kong Monetary Authority. Dr. Chow was
a non-executive director of Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings
Limited (formerly known as China City Construction Group
Holdings Limited) during the period from February 2015 to
October 2016 and an independent non-executive director
of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited during the period from
September 2004 to June 2016, both of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. i
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EENRCSEERASREE

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
] FR B4 TREFH BEER
Tam King-ching, 70 Independent 25  Mr. Tam serves as the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Kenny non-executive director and a member of each of the Nomination Committee and
BERIE BUFHTES Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a practising

Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of Chartered Professional
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Tam is serving as
a member of the Restructuring and Insolvency Faculty
Executive Committee in the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is a past president of The Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. Mr. Tam also serves
as an independent non-executive director of eight other
listed companies on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
namely, Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited, CCT
Fortis Holdings Limited, Starlite Holdings Limited, Hong Kong
Shanghai Alliance Holdings Limited, BeijingWest Industries
International Limited, West China Cement Limited, Greater
Bay Area Investments Group Holdings Limited (formerly
known as CCT Land Holdings Limited) and Wisdom Education
International Holdings Company Limited.
BEERRLAIBREEG IR REZECRFMESRS
BB RAEBREGHM -KABACHMAGZERE
BRMERRABERTEXCHMACER -BLERER
MRS ERRHEEREREENTRECRE - RAT
BEANGHREAEER - BEETHELM N\ FRBR A
FRETZAR (NEREA (RE)ERAR FREREE
BRAAEXGEERAR BAMAHRARAR RAS
TRBERRR FEBHKEERAR KERREERSE
BERAR (AIBTRENSEARAR) RERHUERRE
BRERDE) 2 BIFRTES
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
ESNEREIEASRE

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
®E FR B TREFH BELR
Yung Tse-kwong, 69 Independent 14 Mr. Yung serves as the Chairman of the Remuneration
Steven non-executive director Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee
KT BUFHTES and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Yung

76 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019

was the former Chief Executive Officer of Imagi International
Holdings Limited and was the former Chairman of Clear
Media Limited, both of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. As Managing Partner of Glocal LLC,
Mr. Yung has over 38 years’ management experience from
leading multinational companies in the media, entertainment,
consumer and retail industries. Mr. Yung began his career as a
producer with Hong Kong Commercial Broadcasting Company
Limited and has since held various senior management
positions at The Coca-Cola Company in the United States
of America and Asia, served as Regional Managing Director
of AC Nielsen China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Korea and
as President of Nielsen Media International. He had been a
director of the Cable and Satellite Broadcasting Association
of Asia (CASBAA), and is currently a Director of the Child
Development Matching Fund.
RAERARAFHER G LR URERZEGRREZEER
R -RAEAREFTERERERA D ZAETRER T
REEPINERERRAZAEER MEIRBIMERL
e fERGlocal LLCZ EBABA HAELEBERBBIBFRA
REBCE AR RE HERTEERZERLR-K
FENBEEREERERRARAR ERNREEH B
BACREERTMNBETOALARIREZESRERR
i BEERRIHRESRERATE & SEREE K
Nielsen Media International 2 #82 - %% & £ Cable and Satellite
Broadcasting Association of Asia (CASBAA/E £ + 35 A 7 & %
REHESES:



Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EENRCSEERASREE

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
®E R B4 TREFH BEER
Chan Mei-bo, Mabel 47 Independent 8 Ms. Chan serves as a member of each of the Audit
e non-executive director Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
BIUFHTES Committee of the Company. Ms. Chan is the founder of

Mabel Chan & Co, Certified Public Accountants (Practicing)
and became the deputy managing partner of Grant Thornton
Limited in 2015. Ms. Chan has over 26 years’ experience
in professional accounting field in Hong Kong. She holds
a master degree of business administration from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2000 and a
degree of Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in accountancy from City
Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known as City University of
Hong Kong) in 1993. She served as a council member of the
Association of Women Accountants HK Ltd. (&5 2 & 3l
1) from January 2006 to March 2017, and served as the
president in 2010. She had served as the president of the
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors ( & /&% A &5t
A ) from December 2009 to December 2010, a member
of Barristers Disciplinary Tribunal Panel of Hong Kon (&
BAEMLEEEZE) since May 2010, a member of the
Council of Hong Kong Baptist University since January 2013
a_member of the Appeal Panel (Housing) of Hong Kong (&
BEFRZEE (EE)) from April 2014 to April 2018, and a
member of the Council of Horﬂwig Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (&5 &A% ) since December 2007
and the president of the aforesaid Institute from December
2016 to December 2017, a member of the Small and Medium
Enterprises Committee of HKSAR (B/EF /I t£Z5e)
since January 2017, a member of the Securities and Futures
%%%mmmmnﬁH@Mﬁé%%%&%%%%tﬁ%ﬁ

since April 2017, a member of the Export Credit Insurance
Corporation Advisory Board of HKSAR (& it A1z BRIl B
#i#% 52 ) since April 2017, a member of the Air Transport
Licensing Authority of HKSAR (& & Z=@ IR &) since August
2017 and a member of the Trade and Industry Advisory Board

of HKSAR (BA T X E 5 ##% 8 & ) since September 2017.
RETBALABNZEE RRZBERFMLEE 2D
REtARETEAMSBANEARA YR —F-TFHA
U (B8 Bt MSEAERAMNEEABA -BRELLINE
EZEXQH RAANBFER - RN _TTTFREEA
BRAZTHERRL B WN - AN FRRENMET
S (AREAETERTAR) REXBEL (K8)8( T
Bee BR_TT E-AE_T-LE-ARAEFSLE
HIEmEEUN 2 -SEReE R_SEAET
H§:§*$¢+ZEEE§%$A3#%§%3 R
—SERARECRAAGHMLREHEANS R_T—=F
CAREAEEREAEREENS R_T-NENAZE—
E-NFUAEEEELHZEE (RE)KE N-TTLHE
T AEREEASHASBSeBSUN " T—RET—
AZ-E—+51 ek R-Z—+F—AEEAS
ERMIAEZRERE N T +EMAREIREES
FRASEBLRBEARKE N _F—LFNAREEEEL
DEARBREAZERZE R-B— 5\ JREETS
?gﬁ%@ﬁﬁ'm:g—tﬁﬂﬂﬂ;Eé%l%%%%ﬁ
cHEREH"
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EENRCSEERASRME

Number of

years of

Name Age Position held service
®E FR B EREFY

Business experience

BRER
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Ms. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing)
in Hong Kong, a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a council member and an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, an associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a member
of CPA Australia since 2017.

Ms. Chan currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of another listed company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, namely Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd. Ms.
Chan was an independent non-executive director of a listed
company on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, namely South
China Assets Holdings Limited, during the period from May
2013 to March 2017.
BELTE_Z—+FRABTBHNEQHM RERTARGH
MAGZEAEE BAGHMLEEEREREE HKH
NERAETEANAee s REANGHMAEER -
BRLTRRETRBRMEREANS—HRR (EMRT
BRABERLRNBUFATEZ RRLR_Z—=F1A
ER+E-AHMEMRMGEM MO —M AR (AEE
BEARERAR)BEBIFNTES:



Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EENRCSEERASREE

Number of
years of

Name Age Position held service  Business experience

®E FR B4 TREFH BEER

Hong Kong Office

ERRER

Lai Chi-hang, David 52 Group 26 Mr. David Lai has been with the Group since 1993. He

RER financial controller is responsible for the Group’s accounting and financial

SEMBRE management. Mr. Lai holds a Master's degree in business

administration from University of Wales. He has more than
30 years' experience in auditing, financial accounting and
financial management.
REBRER-—NNZEMALEE - A EAGE 2 €5t 1M
BEE - RAARARANAZIRERET SN EEHEA
ERE MBEH RUKERLR-

PRC base

FEAREE

Yang Mu Lang 58 Senior manager 15 Mr. Yang Mu Lang has been with the Group since 2004. He

YV N: TR is in charge of the factory operation in Zhuhai. Mr. Yang has
more than 35 years’ experience in footwear factory.
BAREEER004EMALEE FEREHRER EEH
FERRERABABF LR

South Asia base

HIEE

Hsu Ming-hsien, 60 Vice general manager 15 Mr. Jack Hsu has been with the Group since 2004. He is in

Jack
BR:E

BlagE

charge of the factory production in Vietnam and also factory
operations in Cambodia. Mr. Hsu has more than 37 years’
experience in the footwear industry.

APBEERN _STNEMAREE -T2 EHEBCEE
SHRRERBERZEE TAEEHEXFRBITFZE
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EENRCSEERASRME

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
®E R B4 TREFH BELR
Wertz Todd Anthony 50 Vice President, Marketing and 1 Mr. Todd Wertz joined the Group in January 2018. He is
Bk Business development responsible for the Group'’s sales and marketing and business

MEEERXHRREIBE
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development. Mr. Wertz has over 26 years’ experience in
the footwear industry. Prior joining the Group, Mr. Wertz
served as a Regional President (Asia) in K-Swiss International
Manufacturing Limited (“K-Swiss”) from 1998 to 2017. He was
mainly responsible for the establishment of legal entities and
standard operating procedures for quality control, in charge
of the manufacturing and supply chain management within
APAC, including Vietnam, Indonesia, Hong Kong, Thailand,
China and Taiwan; and the management of planning and
operations with OEM factories. Before joining K-Swiss, Mr.
WERTZ served as a sales manager in Trust Leather Company
and as a SMU manager in K-Swiss International from 1992
to 1993 and from 1993 to 1994 respectively. From 1995
to 1998, he served as a Line Planner and Finished Goods
Buyer in Pearl Izumi. In 2017, Mr. WERTZ also established
Lysi Solutions to act as OEM sourcing strategist and
turnaround specialist on helping companies to optimize their
supply chains, quality enhancement, software integration
management, corporate trainings and providing profitability
solutions.

XEREER-Z-NF-AMAFEE TEHEXSEMNH
& MEREREBER NEAERERTERAR265LR
BEMAXEEAN  R—ANNEE T -+ FEEK-Swiss
International Manufacturing Limited ( [K-Swiss | ) &) & 35 2 &
(M) NEEXTBEAEKZREBRATEERHINERE
BERF YEESAMBNAERHERER BE8H-
HE &% ZE +ERAE NREEEROEMIKNAE
REE  RAEMAK-Swisshl - DRIR—NNZFE-AN=F
R—ANZFZE—ANEEFETTrust Leather Company &8 &
833 [ K-Swiss International )SMUZ R - F @R — R EE
—NAANERPearl lzumiBTAESBIAMRKRFES - =
T—+F  YEEBRUT Lysi Solutions ' If T OEMEREE &
BEORCEBESR URBOCEELCHAEE RAES.
ERRMAEN CERIRRBBABRAAR

Mr. WERTZ holds a bachelor degree of Arts in International
Relations from the University of Colorado in 1991. He also
studied in Tunghai University for several intensive Mandarin
Chinese language study programs.
XEER-NMN—FRGRENS AEERBEXEELE
fi- RENREABBESREBEELE2BRWRIE



Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EENRCSEERASREE

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
®E R B4 TREFH BEER
Chen Zi-yun, 36 Assistant to Chief Executive 12 Ms. Fiona Apple Chen has been with the Group since
Fiona Apple Officer 2007. She was previously the Managing Director and was
Br= TIREH B2 in charge of the Group’s retailing business. She assists the

Chief Executive Officer for the implementation of corporate
strategies and coordination among different departments
and business units of the Group. She is responsible for the
overall administration and management information systems
of the Group and oversees the Group’s business operation in
Taiwan. She also serves as a director for the subsidiaries of
the Company. She holds a Bachelor's degree from National
Taiwan University in International Business. After graduation,
she studied footwear design at De Montfort University, the
United Kingdom. Ms. Chen is a daughter of Madam Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen and a sister of Mr. Chen Yi-wu Ares.
BF=MEE-ZSLEMALREE -RAANAEZLLE
BEASENTSEE -BRBHITREHEELCEEBERRS
BRARAREXBREN ROHA - REEASENBRITR
HERERAZRREEARERENEBEE - RIFNALRA
SENBRARIES REARVABREEL B T
BB - 2% 7 2B De Montfort University/ & R & -
FRERSH -RIBAERRR T 2R YAREE XL
HIBE A o
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Report of the Directors
SE8HKS

The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company present their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
38 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the principal activities of the Group during the
year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the business, a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year 2019, and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, are provided in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
Discussion and Analysis”,

“Management
and “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” set out on pages 6 to 69 of this annual

report.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this
report, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group
complied with applicable laws, rules and regulations in all material
respects.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 106 to 255.
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An interim dividend of HK2.8 cents per ordinary share and a
special dividend of HK1.2 cents per ordinary share were paid on
31 January 2019. The Directors recommend the payment of a
special dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of
the year to shareholders on the register of members on Friday,
6 September 2019. No final dividend in respect of the year
was recommended by the Board. Details are set out in note
18 to the financial statements. Subject to the passing of the
relevant resolution at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company, the special dividend will be payable on or about
Thursday, 26 September 2019 in cash in Hong Kong dollars.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

Entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to
be held on Wednesday, 28 August 2019. For determining the
entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 23 August 2019 to Wednesday, 28 August 2019, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting, all duly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Thursday, 22 August 2019.

Entitlement to the proposed special dividend

The record date for entitlement to the proposed special dividend
is Friday, 6 September 2019. For determining the entitlement to
the proposed special dividend, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 4 September 2019
to Friday, 6 September 2019, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for the proposed special dividend, all duly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 3 September 2019.

Report of the Directors
E58HKS
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Report of the Directors
SE8HKS

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION B ERHSE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of AEBMRBERAMAMBEEz£EREERAR
the Group for the last five financial years is set out below. This ZHZ&HF| W T - AP B W IERBERH B RER 2
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements. — 5 o

Results i

Year ended 31 March BZ=ZF=+—-HL&EE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE ZE-N\F ZE—+F TR —T-IF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THER FTET TET TET FTET

CONTINUING OPERATIONS R & £%
REVENUE Y& 1,100,649 1,164,873 1,830,267 2,308,161 2,326,399

PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

REBECEEBZBRAAER 5,956 227,629 163,083 152,797 124,952
Income tax credit/(expense) FIEHE S,/ (HX) 27,978 25,634 (14,631) (12,743) (12,853)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
RERFECEER 2ERNGT 33,934 253,263 148,452 140,054 112,099

DISCONTINUED OPERATION T 4 |t £ £ 7%
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operation

REBRILEEEBZENER/ (BR) - 2,165 (17,099) (20,682) (22,785)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4 3 7 33,934 255,428 131,353 119,372 89,314

Attributable to: T3 &AM

Equity holders of the Company A Al H A A 35,593 257,260 132,556 120,205 92,480
Non-controlling interests 3F1% % 1 (1,659) (1,832) (1,203) (833) (3,166)

33,934 255,428 131,353 119,372 89,314
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Assets and liabilities

2019
“E-hE
HK$°000
Tz

Report of the Directors
E58HKS

BEERAE

As at 31 March R=A=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-N\§ T+t ZE-—RF ZT-hafF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET TET TET

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT %1% B & & &
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS T8 1% + i/ & U8
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES & & 1%

DEPOSITS &

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES B % 2 1% &
INVESTMENTS IN CLUB MEMBERSHIPS & fi @ £ 1% &
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS ] fff H &£4% &
CURRENT ASSETS 814 &

250,454
85,744
203,565
38,501
1,970

920,389

278,740 338,037 523,592 522,949
91,048 51,687 86,579 78,159
197,718 136,484 123,247 115,692
= 3,916 22,440 24,793

45,930 57,558 = =
858 870 887 906

= 530 489 892
1,116,529 1,162,205 1,078,747 1,015,636

TOTAL ASSETS & &

1,500,623

1,730,823 1,741,187 1,835,981 1,769,027

CURRENT LIABILITIES A B & &
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 38 & (&

(338,814)
(25,156)

(464,510)  (556,115)  (664,684)  (622,281)
(25059)  (19.877)  (16,878)  (20,228)

TOTAL LIABILITIES # & f&

(363,970)

(489,569)  (575992)  (681,562)  (642,509)

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 3r#: i i %5

(18,721)

(20,380) (19,638) (22,324) (19,335)

1,117,932

1,220,874 1,145,557 1,132,095 1,097,183
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Report of the Directors
SE8HKS

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor,
are set out in notes 26 and 27 to the financial statements,
respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled its
5,046,000 shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The directors considered that the share
repurchases are beneficial to the shareholders of the Company
who retain their investments in the Company. Details of the share
repurchases are set out below:

RAK BB R

FRARBBRARBRELES 2HFBREHD
PR B 75 3R R B SE26 K 27 -

BrBEEHE

ARBZARASERE-AN-FREER
BERREBELBERZIATE BARRBARLD
AR AR REITHA

BE BOxHEAXAQAzLTES

FRARARBEBERXZAARAR ([BR
Pl ) BB Bl & 5 85 505,046,000 B fn - EE R R -
R BLOHREBRARAZRE ZRRE N K
EEZFEBRIIT

Aggregate

Number of consideration

shares Highest price Lowest price (excluding

repurchased per share per share transaction cost)

RELE

Month/Year A F BEROHE BREBESE BRBEEE (FTEBEXZHE)
HK$ % 7T HK$ 7L HK$'000 T T

January 2019 —E— 1 F— A 996,000 1.66 1.62 1,641
February 2019 — £ — L F— A 3,450,000 1.69 1.66 5,761
March 2019 —Z— N F= A 600,000 1.75 1.67 1,012
Total 485t 5,046,000 8,414
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Further details of these transactions are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$483,972,000, of which
HK$13,775,000 has been proposed as a special dividend for the
year after the reporting period. In addition, the Company’s share
premium account, in the amount of HK$97,494,000, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$277,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the Group’s sales to the five largest
customers accounted for 92.2% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 36.6%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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Report of the Directors
SE8HKS

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

Mr. Mumma, Adin David (resigned on 1 May 2019)
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu

Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares (appointed on 1 May 2019)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian

(re-designated from an executive director to

a non-executive director on 1 September 2018)
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.r

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

Pursuant to bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the Company, Mr.
Chan Ho-man, Daniel, Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony and Ms.
Chan Mei-bo, Mabel will retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. In addition, pursuant to bye-law 86(2)
of the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares, who
was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 1 May
2019, shall hold office only until the first general meeting after his
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election. Therefore,
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares will retire from office and offer himself for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and subject to approval by the
Company’s board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,

responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the bye-laws of the Company, the Directors for the
time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or
sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about, the execution of their duty in their respective offices. The
Company has maintained appropriate directors liability insurance
in respect of legal action against the Directors during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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Report of the Directors
SE8HKS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

The related party transactions as set out in note 32 to the
financial statements constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company exempted from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that
it has complied with the applicable disclosure requirements of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Apart from those transactions
disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, no Director nor
a connected entity of a director had a material beneficial interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”), were as follows:
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Report of the Directors
E58HKS

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: AAFEBRRZHER:

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FREROHE SORESENE

Through Percentage
Directly spouse Through of the
beneficially or minor controlled Company’s
owned children corporation Total issued shares
BART
BEE BEBEEAR g ic) ERTRHA
Name of director EE# & BEHA RREFL SZEH DA st ZHEAL
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen = % i 2+ 500,000 = 298,467,541 298,967,541 43.41%
(Note 1)
(Pt &E1)
Mr. Kimmel Phillip Brian 7] & {6 %&£ 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.29%
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel B & 3256 & 5,290,000 - - 5,290,000 0.77%
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu 15 #8 5 4 2,875,000 = = 2,875,000 0.42%
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P. 3,088,000 - - 3,088,000 0.45%
BXEEL  axnes cTHt
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny & 5 1E 5t £ 510,000 - - 510,000 0.07%
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven /T %4 1,900,000 = = 1,900,000 0.28%
Note: B aE

1. These shares comprised (a) 263,960,041 shares held by King 1. I 55 B8 1 B2 4E (@) Fi King Strike Limited ( 3 &= i

Strike Limited, which was owned by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen T B38.04% ) 5 A #9263,960,041 (% A% 17
as to 38.04%; and (b) 34,507,500 shares held by Fat Tat Assets K (o) Fat Tat Assets Limited (& H KL T &
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, BB ) A 34,507,500 & 5

Helen.
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Report of the Directors
SE8HKS

Long positions in share options of the Company: AATBREZHER:
Number of
options directly
beneficially owned
BEEERERZ
Name of Director EE# & BREHE
Executive Directors: #1172 %:
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen & 35 i 22 - 150,000
Mr. Mumma, Adin David (Note 1) B A& 54 (KisE1) 1,250,000
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu =42 8 9t £ 1,000,000
Non-executive Directors: F#TESE :
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel [ & X 4t 4 600,000
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian (Note 2) ] R £ 5%t 4 (FisE2) 1,050,000
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, u.r. B @B £ @ wxsmes A Fa+ 390,000
Independent Non-executive Directors: B FEHITESE:
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny & %% 1E 5t & 1,470,000
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven X 7T 54 600,000
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel fREE 2 1 1,290,000
7,800,000

Notes: B 5T

1. Mr. Mumma, Adin David resigned as an executive director with 1. BABHELEEB - ZT—HLERA—BEETHRITE
effect from 1 May 2019. Ex

2. Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian was re-designated from an executive 2. MRAEER-Z—N\FNLA—BHARTESH
director to a non-executive director on 1 September 2018. EIERITES -
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In addition to the above, certain Directors have non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of complying with
the minimum company membership requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures
in note 27 to the financial statements, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in
note 27 to the financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share award scheme are disclosed in
note 27 to the financial statements. No shares were awarded
under the share award scheme for the year ended 31 March
2019.
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Report of the Directors

EFTWS

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

R R 8 167 =

Other than the share option scheme and share award scheme of 7N A 5189 BE M HE =T 21 K2 B 10 28 Bh =t 2140 A
the Company, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result I8¢ F & 45 R EF - AR BB & 5T 37 sk 15 72 (T A%
in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to  Z #4517 15 & sk F] EHARQ R ZITAAD » 4R
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company  EARR & 5] AL #3545 & 5 Al B RN 7] 31T
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year 15 °

or subsisted at the end of the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERRREMATAROREBEER

PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

TR 2 m

As at 31 March 2019, the following interests of 5% or more of W-ZE—NAF=ZA=+—H U TARBR B EST
the issued share capital and share options of the Company were IR B IS % ek A S B L8N AR B R 1
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the EHNMEAEIFHIFEI36IFBETE 2 ESELMA:

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions: HE:
Percentage of
Capacity Number of the Company’s
and nature ordinary issued share
of interest shares held capital
LER NN
2 BITRA
Name &7 B RERNE FrrEEREE ZBEDL
King Strike Limited (Note 1) (Ff5E1) Beneficially owned 263,960,041 38.32
EnMB
Fat Tat Assets Limited (Note 2) (HizE2) Beneficially owned 34,507,500 5.01
EnEE
Aggregate of Standard Life Aberdeen Plc Investment Manager 48,376,000 7.02
affiliated investment management entities WELEIR
(Note 3) (Ff#E3)
Mr. David Michael Webb (Note 4) Beneficially owned/ 41,970,000 6.09
David Michael Webb4t 4 (i 5E4) Through controlled
corporation
EmlEs,/
FRREEE
HSBC Global Asset Management Investment Manager 42,138,000 6.12
(Hong Kong) Limited (Note 5) wEKE

ELRRREEE (FE)BRAA (M:E5)
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Notes:

1. King Strike Limited was owned by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
and her four children as to 38.04% and in aggregate 61.96%,
respectively.

2. Fat Tat Assets Limited was wholly owned by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen.

3. The 48,376,000 shares were held in the capacity as an investment
manager by Aggregate of Standard Life Aberdeen Plc affiliated
investment management entities based on its form of disclosure
notification dated 8 February 2019.

4. Mr. David Michael Webb was interested in a total of 41,970,000
shares, comprising 14,614,002 shares held by him as beneficial
owner and 27,355,998 shares held by Preferable Situation Assets
Limited, the entire share capital of which is owned by Mr. David
Michael Webb based on his form of disclosure notification dated 15
March 2017.

(55 The 42,138,000 shares were held in the capacity as an investment
manager by HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited
based on its form of disclosure notification dated 16 October 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares
and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors
SE8HKS

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total number of issued shares were held by the public
as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for the re-appointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chan Ho-man, Daniel
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 June 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

et
EY:x

To the shareholders of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 106 to 255, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
15 X1 1% BN B ¥R 5

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

Provision for inventories

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had net inventories
of HK$148.3 million, representing 16% and 10% of
the Group’s total current assets and total assets,
respectively. The estimation of the inventory provision
requires significant management judgement, which
includes judgement about the recoverability of the cost of
inventories, the nature and condition of inventories, the
marketability of finished goods and the future usage of
raw materials.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3, 7 and 18 to
the financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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EAREITSEIE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We tested the ageing analysis of the Group’s inventories.
We recalculated the inventory provision based on
management’s estimation and assessed the assumptions
being used in the inventory provision calculation by
reviewing the basis, the rationale and the consistency
of the inventory provision estimation. We assessed
obsolescence provisions by considering the inventory
level against historical inventory turnover days and
substantively checked to both past and subsequent
sales and usage information on selected inventory
samples. We also discussed with management the
inventory items with potential obsolescence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
15 X1 1% BN B ¥R 5

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s investment properties
amounted to HK$203.6 million, representing 35%
and 14% of the Group’s total non-current assets and
total assets, respectively. Management appointed an
external valuer to determine the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties twice a year. The valuation of the
investment properties at fair value was highly dependent
on estimates and assumptions, such as those relating to
the rental value, rental growth rate, market yield, market
knowledge and historical transactions.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 16 to the
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We considered the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the external valuer engaged by
management, and assessed the property related data,
including estimates used by the external valuers. Such
procedures included comparing the rent and term
periods against the existing lease agreements and
performing market research on key valuation parameters
including the capitalization rate and market rent of similar
properties. We involved our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in assessing the assumptions and estimates
made by management and the external valuer in the
valuation methodology about the property related data
supporting the fair value of the investment properties. We
also assessed the disclosures relating to the significant
assumptions.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
Tax

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had tax payable of
HK$134.5 million and deferred tax liabilities of HK$24.2
million, representing 44% of the Group’s total liabilities
in aggregate. The income tax credit amounted to HK$28
million, representing 82% of the Group’s profit after
tax for the year ended 31 March 2019. Management is
required to make judgement and estimates in relation
to tax risks when determining the tax provision. The
Group operates in a number of tax jurisdictions. Due to
the complexity of local and international tax legislation,
judgements have to be made by management on the tax
treatment on transactions in advance of the ultimate tax
determination being certain. Where the amount of tax
payable or recoverable is uncertain, the Group estimates
provision based on management’s judgement of the
probable amount of the liability, or expected amounts
recoverable.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3, 10 and 25 to
the financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AL}

We involved our tax specialists to review the tax
provision of the Group. We assessed management’s
judgements in respect of estimates of tax exposures by
considering the associated fact pattern and the Group's
correspondence with relevant tax authorities and recent
developments in the tax jurisdictions which may have an
impact on existing tax exposures.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

104

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Kam Yee.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

26 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

ig—‘_ﬁ\ 2%
w3 E‘.III:I.
Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z = FE—hWF=H=+—HIFF/Z

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes Mf#E HK$’000 F#&;x  HK$'000 F/& T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS @& & & %75
REVENUE Uz 5 1,100,649 1,164,873
Cost of sales $H & X & (984,394) (982,252)
Gross profit & #| 116,255 182,621
Other income and gains, net H U A & W 58 58 5 41,152 29,167
Distribution and selling expenses 7§ & £ 5 5% (80,555) (26,084)
Administrative expenses 77§ X (113,421) (120,819)
Finance costs &l & X 7% 6 (46) ©)
Share of losses of associates F& {k B 4 A & &5 18 (7,429) (11,628)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary i & —E M E Q" z k= 29 - 174,381
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
KRB FFELEFER 2 BRT A& F 7 5,956 227,629
Income tax credit Ff 155 K % 10 27,978 25,634
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REFEEEERZF N @A 33,934 253,263
DISCONTINUED OPERATION B #& b & & £ 7%
Profit for the year from discontinued operation
REEKRIEEEER 2 F N F 11 = 2,165
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR % A i F) 33,934 255,428
Attributable to: T %I & I8 fE1f
Equity holders of the Company AN ‘A BRIz A A 35,593 257,260
Non-controlling interests FE1% I A 25 (1,659) (1,832)
33,934 255,428
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Notes HffzE

2019
—F-NF
HK$’000 & T

i%—‘_/;\ 2%
wh 3 E‘IID.
Year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —FE— WF=H=+—HIFFZE

2018
—E—N\F
HK$'000 F % T

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
ARRIESEFEABIESRAT

Basic FE A&
— For profit for the year — 45 % £l

12

HK5.14 centsi& 1l

HK36.82 centsi# Il

— For profit from continuing operations
—REFEEE X2 5 A

HK5.14 centsi& 1l

HK36.51 centsi# Il

Diluted ##5&
— For profit for the year — £ A % Fl

HK5.13 centsi& 1l

HK36.66 centsiE 1l

— For profit from continuing operations

—REFBREEL 2 H5 A

HK5.13 centsi& 1l

HK36.36 centsi# Il
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

MOZTEWNAEE

Year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —FE— W F=H=+—HIFFE

Note Bff &

2019
—ZE-NEF
HK$’000 ¥ i T

2018
—E-)N\F
HK$'000 T 7T

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR % A i #)

33,934

255,428

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE)
Hi2mEkas (FX)

Other comprehensive income/(expense) that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
HenkENoBERRR 2 EM2EKE (AX) -

Available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve:
At ERE B R
Changes in fair value 2 {8 &
Reclassification adjustments for
gains on disposal included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
STAGREBRERIHERGECEMDRRE

82

(540)

(458)

Exchange differences: [& 5 = %8 :

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
BMEBIMNCEEBZIER 25

Reclassification adjustment for
a foreign operation disposed of during the year
FALENBINEEEB 2 EHNDRRE

Reclassification adjustment for
deregistration of a subsidiary
—HENE AR FHER BN D RAR

(17,058)

(1,816)

25,820

(22,441)

(18,874)

3,379

Net other comprehensive income/(expense) that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
HErgEENmsoBERaR M2 EkKE
(P )%

(18,874)

2,921

108 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
SR e

Year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —FE— WF=H=+—HIFFZE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T—)\F
Note Bff & HK$’000 F/&7t HK$000 F/& T

Other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
HETgEMDAERaR EMEE K

Asset revaluation reserve: & & & i (4 & -
Gain on revaluation of buildings E &£ F 2 U 25 14 18,751 4,567

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE)
FOR THE YEAR
FEHMmEEWE, (FX) (123) 7,488

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
FEE2EKZRE 33,811 262,916

Attributable to: T %I & I8 1L

Equity holders of the Company AN ‘A Bl A A 35,470 264,748
Non-controlling interests 3F ¥ i% # 25 (1,659) (1,832)
33,811 262,916
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

tn ORISR IR %

31 March 2019 —E— W F=H=+—H

2019 2018
—ZE-NEF —ZE-N\F
Notes Fff#% HK$000 F# Tt HK$000 T/ 7T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3£ 8 & &
Property, plant and equipment ¥ % « = N & & 14 250,454 278,740
Prepaid land lease payments T8 + i 78 & kI8 15 85,744 91,048
Investment properties & & ¥ % 16 203,565 197,718
Investments in associates B & A 718 & 17 38,501 45,930
Investments in club memberships & Ff & £ 1% & 1,970 858
Total non-current assets JE 7 8) & = 4858 580,234 614,294
CURRENT ASSETS B & &
Inventories 17 & 18 148,321 169,945
Accounts receivable & I Bf 18 19 109,321 95,886
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
BNFRIE Re A EKERE 14,277 13,437
Due from an associate & 4Bt & X 7] 5 IH 17 37,873 31,633
Tax recoverable AJ Y [@ 75 18 763 1,336
Cash and cash equivalents I8 & &£ RIR&EH 20 609,834 804,292
Total current assets it E) & /&= 8 58 920,389 1,116,529
CURRENT LIABILITIES /&) & (&
Accounts payable F&1 8k IE 21 96,391 132,959
Accrued liabilities, other payables and contract liabilities
EEtEE HttEMEBRERSNERE 22 107,912 165,304
Tax payable & 518 134,511 165,320
Derivative financial instruments $74 € & T & 23 - 927
Total current liabilities it 21 B & 42 %8 338,814 464,510

110 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ERO ISR T

31 March 2019 —F— W F=H=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
Notes ffz¥ HK$’000 F/&7t HK$000 F/& T

NET CURRENT ASSETS i 8 & &% E 581,575 652,019

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
BERLRBRATBDAEEG 1,161,809 1,266,313

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3Em & & (&

Deposits received 2 Hi% & 1,005 1,348
Deferred tax liabilities #E LT 1B & & 25 24,151 23,711
Total non-current liabilities 3E 7R B & E 44 %8 25,156 25,059
Net assets & & /F18 1,136,653 1,241,254

EQUITY ## 3
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
RATRHERTEE AEEER

Issued share capital & 217 A 26 68,875 69,350
Reserves f# & 28 1,049,057 1,151,524
1,117,932 1,220,874
Non-controlling interests JE12 i% # &5 18,721 20,380
Total equity 18z 42 58 1,136,653 1,241,254
Chan Ho-man, Daniel & Wong Hei-chiu ZEi#
Director &% Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BiERBIME

Year ended 37 March 2019 B2 —E— W F=H=+—HIFFZE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARNAIRHERFE ARG
Available-
for-sale
Issued Share Capital Share  Exchange Asset  investment Non-
share  premium redemption option fluctuation revaluation revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
Al E
B&#TT .40 A BRE X BE RESH FFEERR
BRA HER BOEE @ KDEE EHEE f#fh  REER Eh Bn BzReH
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FHT THT THET TET FTHT THL TET TET THT THET TER
At 1 April 2017 R—Z—+FMA—H 69,969 119,059 5,307 7,174 36,442 43,222 458 863,926 1,145,557 19,638 1,165,195
Profit/(loss) for the year
FREFl/ (E8) - - - - - - - 257,260 257,260 (1,832) 255,428
Available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve arising
from changes in fair value and
reclassification adjustments for
gains on disposal
ATEEHRNERRL
ENHRABELL
AHEERESMERE = = = = = = (458) - (458) - (458)
Exchange differences related to
foreign operations
HENCERBRRCEREZR - - - - 3,379 - - - 3,379 - 3,379
Changes in fair value of buildings
recognised directly in equity
E&W&*” RLBEFZ
AT EEE - - - - - 4,567 - = 4,567 = 4,567
Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year
FE2ENE/(BX) 88 - - - - 3,379 4,567 (458) 257,260 264,748 (1,832) 262,916
Issue of shares (note 26)
BT (H3E26) 208 3,462 = (711) = = = = 2,959 = 2,959
Shares repurchased (note 26)
BRI (Kizk26) 827)  (17,739) 827 = = = = (827)  (18,566) - (18,566)
Loans from non-controlling shareholders
FERBRRER - - - - - - - - - 3,822 3,822
Final 2017 dividend declared and
paid (note 13)
BERRENZ-E—LFE
RERE (M3E13) - - - - - - - (38,434)  (38,434) - (38,434)
Special 2017 dividend declared and
paid (note 13)
ERRENZ-_E—tEE
Mlﬂxﬁ iEak) - - - - - - - (31,446)  (31,446) - (31,446)
Interim 2018 dividend paid (note 13)
BRI Z=F—NEE
FER S (H313) - - - - - - - (26562)  (26,562) - (26,562
Special 2018 dividend paid (note 13)
BRI Z=F—NFE
RIS (KiEE13) = - - - - - - (78,287)  (78,287) - (78,287)
Dividend paid to non-controlling
shareholders
EEFEENIE - - - - - - - - - (1,248) (1,248)
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments (note 27)
BRNEREEURNZHZ
SR (MsE7) - - - 905 - - - - 905 - 905
At 31 March 2018
RZZ-N\$=ZR=+—-A 69,350  104,782* 6,134* 7,368* 39,821* 47,789* -* 945,630* 1,220,874 20,380 1,241,254
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ROEREER

Year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —FE— WF=H=+—HIFFZE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARREREEARSE
Available-
for-sale
Issued Share Capital Share Exchange Asset investment Non-
share  premium redemption option fluctuation revaluation revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
THEE
BR#1T 4 BRA BRE i:37) BE REEHR FER

kA EEE WERE W EBREE BHEE W REEAN Ch BxE REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEgx Tz FEx  TEx TEx TEx  FTEx FEx FEx  FEx  TEx

At 1 April 2018
RZE-\$0A-A

Profit/(loss) for the year
EREF/ (BR)

Exchange differences related to
foreign operations
HEIMEEEBRMCERER

Changes in fair value of buildings
recogmsed directly in equity
E&W% SR ZETZ

RTEES

69,350 104,782 6,134 7,368 39,821 47,789 - 945,630 1,220,874 20,380 1,241,254

o = - - - - - 35,593 35,593 (1,659) 33,934

= = = - (18,874) = = - (18,874)

(18,874)

- - - - - 18,751 - - 18,751 - 18,751

Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year
FR2ENE/ (RX)BE

Issue of shares (note 26)

BT (Hi:E26)

Shares repurchased (note 26)
BRI (fiE26)

Final 2018 dividend declared and
paid (note 13)
BERREGZZZ—N\FE
RERRS (FFE13)

Special 2018 dividend declared and
paid (note 13)
BERREGZZE-N\FE
KRR S (HiEE13)

Interim 2019 dividend paid (note 13)
BRNZ-E-NEE
R A (H13E13)

Special 2019 dividend paid (note 13)
BRNZ-ZE—NEE
AR (Fta13)

Recognition of equity-settled
share based payments (note 27)

R 2 4 B AR AR 32 1
E (fifster)

- - - - (18874) 18,751 - 35593 35470 (1,659) 33,811
30 621 = 177) = - - - 474 - 474

(505)  (7,909) 505 = . > - (505)  (8,414) - (8419)

= = > = = = - (15264)  (15,264) - (15,264)

_ _ - - - = - (88,806)  (88,806) - (88,806)

. = > = = = - (19,426)  (19,426) - (19,426)

o o > = o o - (8326  (8,326) - (8329)

- - - 1,350 - - - - 1,350 - 1,350

At 31 March 2019
RZE-NAFZA=1+—-H

68,875  97,494*  6,639*  8541*  20,947*  66,540* -*  848.896* 1,117,932 18,721 1,136,653

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZEREREANGKEUBMRRIEZESE

HK$1,049,057,000 (2018: HK$1,151,524,000) in the consolidated % #1,049,057,000 T (=T — /\ F :
statement of financial position. 1,151,524,000% 70 ) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BIREMER

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z = FE—hWF=H=+—HIFF/Z

Notes izt

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000 T & Tt

2018
—E-)N\F
HK$'000 T8 7T

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
RELZBHARE L RERE
Profit before tax Bk & il F

From continuing operations 7 & #5 48 48 & £ 75 5,956 227,629
From discontinued operation 5 B B 4 [ A& & ¥ 7% - 2,165
Adjustments for: &% :
Finance costs &l & ik A& 6 46 9
Depreciation #7& 7,14 33,379 37,888
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments
BHEEM T MAERIE 7,15 2,719 1,758
Provision/(write-back) of provision for inventories
FERE /BB (ERE) 7 5,034 (6,186)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment, net
HEME BFERXEERBE/ (Kz)F8 7 2 1,714
Loss on disposal of investment properties, net
HEREMEBEFR 7 3,873 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &Kt B 2 A 7 Wz 29 - (176,663)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary
—FRME AR FHEE R W 7 (1,816) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments
HEAMEHERE 2 W 7 - (540)
Amortisation of club memberships € P & & % ¢ 7 38 12
Fair value gains on revaluation of investment properties
EREBEYE L A TFERE 7,16 (10,130) (5,449)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
ME - BERRERE 7,14 - 9,221
Write-off of items of property, plant and equipment
WEHE BB RREEE 7,14 17 765
Interest income F| 2 U A 7 (16,823) (15,562)
Dividend income f% 84 A 7 - (20)
Equity-settled share option expense
DREREE  BRIERX 7 1,350 905
Share of losses of associates fE 15 HE & A @l E518 7,429 11,628
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [& R & &) v 22 2 50 4,180
31,120 93,454
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 17 &# 2/ (&) 16,590 (5,086)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable
MR TR 2/ (35 hn) (13,435) 45,122
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
FEATIE ke REMBERRER D,/ (80) 196 (4,382)
Decrease in accounts payable &1+ 8k 78 5 (36,568) (16,327)
Decrease in accrued liabilities, other payables and
contract liabilities
B BE HEMENRERENEERD (51,377) (61,866)
Increase/(decrease) in deposits received
Blizegm,/ () (343) 1,348
Increase/(decrease) in derivative financial instruments
fTESBmIAEM, Chd) (927) 927
Cash generated from/(used in) operations
mems/ (MR)ZRE (54,744) 53,190
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BIRENMER

Year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —FE— WF=H=+—HIFFZE

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-N\F

Notes i 7 HK$’000 /&t  HK$'000 FA&7T

Interest received B U4 F & 16,705 15,562
Interest paid & 15 # & (46) (©)
Hong Kong profits tax paid &1 & % Fl 5%t = (1,681)
Overseas taxes paid B /85N 1B (298) (4,496)
Dividends paid 2 - B& & 13 (131,822) (174,729)

Net cash flows used in operating activities
REBHAAZETREFR (170,205) (112,163)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

KRERBREZHERE
Dividend received B 5% 2 - 20
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment

BEWE WELEEEEB 14, 35 (24,100) (25,942)
Purchases of items of club memberships

BEeMME£EA (1,166) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment

HEWE  BERREBEBFRERE 170 2,897
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties

HEREMEMRERIA 15,759 -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investments

HERIHEEREMBERIEA - 612
Disposal of subsidiaries i & B A &l 29 - 190,964
Increase in an amount due from an associate

JE W Bt &8 % ] FRIE IR AN (6,240) (20,517)
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with original

maturity of over three months when acquired

RKERREINHBZR=EA 2 EHEX

w (&) 192,950 (113,215)

Net cash flows from investing activities
RERSME 2R MEFR 177,373 34,819
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BIREMER

Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z = FE—hWF=H=+—HIFF/Z

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
Notes Fff#E HK$'000 T#& 7t  HK$000 T4 7T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BMERFMEZ2RERE
Issue of shares 1T {5 26 474 2,959
Repurchase of shares & o] f& {5 26 (8,414) (18,566)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders
I FE 128 A% A& SRR A1 AR B0 - (1,248)
Increase in loans from non-controlling shareholders
FEVE AR AR 3R B FRIE AN - 3,822
Net cash flows used in financing activities
BEFHFAZREREFRE (7,940) (13,033)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
RekFERBEEEB D FE (772) (90,377)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
FzHehkERNREIER 117,703 206,870
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net
RS B FRE (736) 1,210
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
FRzEeRERKEIEAR 116,195 117,703
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
RekERBSBERERZ DN
Cash and bank balances I8 & [ 88 17 45 &4 20 78,098 81,353
Time deposits with original maturity of less than
three months when acquired
REERREIHE DR =8 2 FHPFK 20 38,097 36,350
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows
FeRenERIRTZReRERNREEAR 116,195 117,708
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2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the manufacture
and trading of footwear and property investment.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
detailed in note 38 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties and
derivative financial instruments which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

1%

2.1

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2019 —F— W F=H=+—H

AAREEER
EEEXSEERAR AR B REZM
MY ZEBRRAR -ARA 2 EE
fiZ A Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda °

FER AEBRELEREEEBUARYE
WE - RANFTEMB AR ZEBHNIE
MR HMIEESS ©

mREE

MBEBEREREBEBELESAMAGHMZE
B BHEEN ([FEMBREEL ] B
BRAATEMBRE LD FAESHLE
(A EFEL]) LRE) BEEERN
St RAIAREE R AHED 2 R R E R
o PBMKRIIVBBELRAE ARSI
REMERTESRMTANZ A FEFE -
FsEmERIAETT (187T]) 25 B = A TR
EINFAREERAEZRE O TRE-
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Notes to Financial Statements
B ¥ ¥R R BT 5E

31 March 2019 —E— W F=H=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

118

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2019 —F— W F=H=+—H

21 RBEE &)

RERBEE(F)

BaE L EMPERE 2 SEKI D HBRA
NEVESETA A RIEER S - BIE I 85
BIRFERERHRBEMER - MESER
RARAIZBERAE #Es WA FKAR
EASKEKNERRRZRBERZRERE
BREFRE R E RESYHE-

T S5 B K B R R | 3Pl = TR A A
ZER-HHKZHEEE AAKESERR
BINAEHREAR - WEB AR EEEER
25 (WEAEEHIE)  RASRK I (F2

BXHe

HMAEBMAEEH B AR ZEH#E - AR
BROZMBARAZEE(BREEE)RE
& (i) E FE 12 B i 2 2 BRTEN A T (iii) P HE 2
Witsk 2 Rt =5 RER)EKARE
ZAFE ()R B AR E 2 A FE i)
FRE R IBESERNEE 2 BRIEAL - 5TAT
REMEEBEABRZ ANEBEEBIIE
MNAEEE B HERBEENBEMR
EZHAREEEFHEEBR KRG E T
(fnEE) °
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Notes to Financial Statements
B ¥ ¥R R BT 5E

31 March 2019 —E— W F=H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

22 S BERRKEZBE

AEBEERAFREFBHRERFT BAEABAT

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial I REIERT BB M B REZER -

statements.

Amendments to Classification and Measurement EEUBREEN URGZNKZZ
HKFRS 2 of Share-based Payment FORZIERT DHEREE
Transactions
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial BEUBRELER BHAEZEYHHEETER
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4 FARZEFT FOREHITAREE
Insurance Contracts B BRI E 43
RERE A
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments EEMBREEN 2HTA
£9%%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts EEUBRELEN KEEFPEAZHA
with Customers £15%
Amendments to Clarifications to HKFRS 15 BEMBRELER HEEBEYHHEER
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts F15R 2 B35 FI5HKEELEH
with Customers WA 2 EE
Amendments to Transfers of Investment BEGTER BERENE
HKAS 40 Property F405R 2 B35
HK(FRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions 55 (RBRHBRE S EXBRAEWK
and Advance Consideration 2EZE®) BITHE
—REE225%
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 —E—mFEE

2014-2016 Cycle

and HKAS 28

—F-NFEY  REER

2 FRE

N

SRl

A

BB RS ERE R
gire
A

F285% 21

S

BRAEEMBRELERNFAR 2B REELH
BHEER —F—MFE—F—NFHEHZ
FRUEBREUANEEOM BRI BRI
BRAFA MRERT BBV REEREE &
FEMMmT

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 4 and Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle, which are
not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements, the nature and the impact of the new and
revised HKFRSs are described below:
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 address three main
areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction; the classification of a share-based
payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet an
employee’s tax obligation associated with the share-
based payment; and accounting where a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
transaction changes its classification from cash-
settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify that
the approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-settled share-based payments
also applies to cash-settled share-based payments.
The amendments introduce an exception so that
a share-based payment transaction with net share
settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is
classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction when certain conditions
are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction are modified, with the
result that it becomes an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for
as an equity-settled transaction from the date of the
modification. The amendments have had no impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group
as the Group does not have any cash-settled share-
based payment transactions and has no share-based
payment transactions with net settlement features for
withholding tax.

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2019 —F— W F=H=+—H

22 B BRREEZEE (&)

(a)

BEMBRE L FE2ROET SR =
EEERE : AITHEGFEREEER
BOSNRSAENTE  HERFHE
RERBNROINRZNERES
B XN EBNAHEENSE
AR B AD ST AN 22 5 AR R B AR 1R
EREHENERRCHEETE RiE
SEHNSRTRIE - ERRE KR8
AR A H R BD ST B AR At & AT
TRIFHN T AEERRNEEEEN
Bfn A o (B RT& BIHE — TR BISMEE -
FE R R LR T » #8 B i ST A R4
B —E B Am T B BRI EL M
ERAFREERENBREINRS
AISER D BB B R
SETEERE - WIN EFTEB - i
R FEE IR TN RSB HRK %R
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X5 AZXZEERZBEER
REFENRXZETEMRE -ZF
BRI T B AREN BB K
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Notes to Financial Statements
B ¥ ¥R R BT 5E

31 March 2019 —E— W F=H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2018, bringing together all three aspects of the
accounting for financial instruments: classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.
The Group has recognised the transition adjustments
against the applicable opening balances at 1 April
2018. Therefore, the comparative information was not
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS
39.

Classification and measurement

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under
HKAS 39 and the balances reported under HKFRS 9
as at 1 April 2018 is as follows:

22 B BRREEBEZEE (&)

(b)

HKAS 39 measurement

EREEREI9NHE

BANBRELERFESFLHTANR
T-NENA— AR EBABNEE
HEBRRESSHERIFESRLHT
A ERRGTE EESRMTAREDN
ZRKAE: DERFE  RERETE
HoAEEERN T /\EMNA—B&
BERAMBPVERERBERE Al -
hEERYESY B EERERS
GR35 TE R

PERHE
R=F—\FMA—R BRI

s

EIRE THREEREE BN B RS
AERIZEOFRIE T P 2 A 45 858 2 B BR A0
T

%

HKFRS 9 measurement

BERMBHREERERAE

Category Amount Amount Category
HHl o 8 il
HK$'000 Tt HK$000 Tt
Financial assets B & &
Accounts receivable J& U BR TE L&R' 95,886 95,886 AC?
Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
FTATERRIE e K&
H b e WERIA R BA 15 & 2 L&R! 6,435 6,435 AC?
Due from an associate
JE W — SR Bt & A Rl R L&R! 31,633 31,633 AC?
Cash and cash equivalents
RehERHFETEAR L&R' 804,292 804,292 AG?
938,246 938,246
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 5 ¥R 2R Bif 5

31 March 2019 —F— W F=H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 Bt HERREEZRE (9
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
(b) (continued) b) (&)
Classification and measurement (continued) SERITE (E)
HKAS 39 measurement HKFRS 9 measurement
BB ST EREINHE ERMBHREEAEIRTE
Category Amount Amount Category
] ok} k-] <]

HK$000 T#7x HKS$'000 Tt

Financial liabilities &1 1§ & &
Accounts payable F&1 B8R IE AC? (132,959) (132,959) AC?
Financial liabilities included in

accrued liabilities and other

payables
FTAERTAE R E A4 ESIRIE
WA R AC? (102,902) (102,902) AC?
Derivative financial instruments
MEERTHE FVPL® (927) (927) FVPL®
(236,788) (236,788)
1 L&R: Loans and receivables 1 L&R : B3 & e W AR 18
2 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised 2 AC : IRE AT E M B EE
cost B aE
3 FVPL: Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value 8 FVPL : B3B8z AR AR Z 8
through profit or loss BEEXUBEE
Impairment JR1E
There was no significant impact from replacing the RZE—N\FHNA—BUEBYTB
aggregate opening impairment allowance under HKAS HEERFIRBTIHEREEERE
39 with expected credit losses (“ECLs”) allowances ([TEHEESE]) BERMREE S
under HKFRS 9 on the above financial assets as at 1 AERIZE395% I8 T~ WY BR VR (B B 18 58
April 2018. HEMMBEETLREATE -
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Notes to Financial Statements
B ¥ ¥R R BT 5E

31 March 2019 —E— W F=H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

124

(c)

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and
related interpretations and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from
Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the

contracts with customers.

consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The disclosures
are included in note 5 to the financial statements. As
a result of the application of HKFRS 15, the Group
has changed the accounting policy with respect
to revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method,
the standard can be applied either to all contracts
at the date of initial application or only to contracts
that are not completed at this date. The Group has
elected to apply the standard to contracts that are not
completed as at 1 April 2018. The initial application
of HKFRS 15 has had no effect on the timing and
measurement of revenue recognition as at 1 April
2018.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

(d)

(continued)

The cumulative effect of the initial application of
HKFRS 15 was recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance as at 1 April 2018. Therefore,
the comparative information was not restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 11, HKAS 18
and related interpretations.

Consideration received from customers in
advance

Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
recognised consideration received from customers
in advance as accrued liabilities and other payables.
Under HKFRS 15, the amount is classified as contract
liabilities which are included in accrued liabilities and
other payables and contract liabilities. Therefore,
upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group reclassified
HK$4,342,000 from accrued liabilities and other
payables to contract liabilities as at 1 April 2018 in
relation to the consideration received from customers
in advance as at 1 April 2018. As at 31 March 2019,
under HKFRS 15, HK$899,000 was reclassified from
accrued liabilities and other payables to contract
liabilities in relation to the consideration received from
customers in advance.

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity
should transfer property, including property under
construction or development, into or out of investment
property. The amendments state that a change in
use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to
meet, the definition of investment property and there
is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in
management’s intentions for the use of a property
does not provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

RS R Bl 5

31 March 2019 —F— W F=H=+—H

22 B BRREEZEE (&)

(d)

BERERERBMBERELRIFIEHEZ
R ENRA/ER T N\FHO
A—B#&ser A% At ERE
B ESS R EBRIEE SR
F115E - BE G ERFE185E KA
BEmE -

BAEEFURBHE

RMNE BB RS ERFE155 A A
EEKELEERFPHRHREERA
FERT B B R E AL FETERIE - IRIEH B
B ELEREIS 2B EAE
HWEE FAESBEREMENIRE
UREHBE- Al FRNE BT IEH
HEAFEIGHERB REBR=ZZ—N
FOA-—BBEAEEFKRBMNREM
FALER-_ZTZ—N\FOA—BF
4,342,000/ 7T B FE 5T B (& R H b FE AT
ERIEEFSTBEEENAE -RZT—N
F=ZA=1+—H8 BEBBUBHREE
BIZE155% SBERMELE TP WEA
KRBT E - 899,000/ LA EFFAE R
HiEMERIEEN D EEANEE-

BB ERFA0R 2 BRI B EEE
FEMEEYZE (BRIETEREKFAERD
M) B AKERIREYE - ZEB]
AR EMEREITEREREY
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Notes to Financial Statements
B ¥ ¥R R BT 5E

31 March 2019 —E— W F=H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

126

(e)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to
determine the date of the transaction when applying
HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates to the situation where an entity receives or
pays advance consideration in a foreign currency
and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability. The
interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to
use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such
as a prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as
deferred income) arising from the payment or receipt
of the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising
the related item, the entity must determine the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration. The interpretation has had
no impact on the Group’s financial statements as
the Group’s accounting policy for the determination
of the exchange rate applied for initial recognition
of non-monetary assets or non-monetary liabilities
is consistent with the guidance provided in the
interpretation.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Leases’

Insurance Contracts®

Definition of Material?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23!
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

128

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest
in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard
includes two elective recognition exemptions for lessees —
leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset).
The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition
of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class
of property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and
reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required
to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease
liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-
use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such
as change in the lease term and change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases
and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors
to make more extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17.
Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either
a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach
The Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019. The
Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS
16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
at 1 April 2019 and will not restate the comparatives. In
addition, the Group plans to apply the new requirements to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application. The right-of-use asset will be measured at
the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the
lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before the date of initial application. The Group
plans to use the exemptions allowed by the standard on
lease contracts whose lease terms end within 12 months as
of the date of initial application.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

130

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

As disclosed in note 30(b) to the financial statements,
at 31 March 2019, the Group had future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
aggregate of approximately HK$3,503,000. Upon adoption
of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein may need
to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. The right-of-use asset will be measured at the
amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the
lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before the date of initial application. The Group
plans to use the exemptions allowed by the standard on
lease contracts whose lease terms end within 12 months
as of the date of initial application. The Group will need
to perform a more detailed analysis to determine the
amount of new right of use assets and lease liabilities to be
recognised arising from operating lease commitments upon
the adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking account into the
exemptions mentioned above, the exception of short-term
and low-value leases, and the effects of discounting.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is applied and does
not include long-term interests that in substance form part
of the net investment in the associate or joint venture, to
which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore,
an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including
the impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting
for such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to
the net investment, which includes the long-term interests,
only in the context of recognising losses of an associate
or joint venture and impairment of the net investment
in the associate or joint venture. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments on 1 April 2019 and will assess
its business model for such long-term interests based on
the facts and circumstances that exist on 1 April 2019
using the transitional requirements in the amendments.
The Group also intends to apply the relief from restating
comparative information for prior periods upon adoption of
the amendments.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

2.3
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

132

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount
of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and
derivative financial instruments at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

134

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured

or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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